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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I'd like to call

          3  this Committee on Housing and Buildings to order.

          4                 Good afternoon.  My name is Erik

          5  Martin Dilan, and I am the Chair of the Committee on

          6  Housing and Buildings.  And I'd like to introduce

          7  the members of the Committee that are here.

          8  Starting to the far right,   --  and I don't know if

          9  that's appropriate, appropriate for Dennis Gallagher

         10    --  but it's Council Member James Oddo, who is

         11  also the Chair of the Task Force on the Buildings

         12  Department, I always get that wrong.  Council Member

         13  McMahon, from Staten Island.  Council Member Leroy

         14  Comrie, and Council Member Avella was here, but he

         15  has two hearings that are meeting at the same time,

         16  and from what I understand, he ran up to Veterans,

         17  and will be returning very shortly.  I also would

         18  like to introduce the Counsel of the Committee, Ms.

         19  Terzah Nasser.  And the Policy Analyst, Mr. Ben

         20  Goodman.

         21                 Thank you for attending this hearing

         22  this afternoon. There are seven bills on the agenda

         23  today that deal with the subject of demolition.  And

         24  the following bills are being considered by this

         25  Committee today:
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          2                 Intro. No. 3, which is sponsored by

          3  Council Member Avella, is a Local Law to amend the

          4  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

          5  relation to demolition work without a permit.

          6                 Intro. No. 30- A, sponsored by

          7  Council Member Mike McMahon, is a Local Law to amend

          8  the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

          9  relation to notification of community boards and

         10  Council Members of applications for new construction

         11  and certain demolition and alteration permits.

         12                 Intro. No. 132, sponsored by Council

         13  Member Recchia, is a Local Law to amend the

         14  Administrative Code of the City of New York, also in

         15  relation to demolition work without a permit.

         16                 Intro. No. 265, sponsored by Council

         17  Member Gale Brewer, a Local Law to amend the

         18  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         19  relation to the definitions of alteration and

         20  demolition in the Building Code.

         21                 Intro. No. 329, sponsored by Council

         22  Member Leroy Comrie, a Local Law to amend the

         23  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         24  relation to requiring a demolition site safety

         25  coordinators on demolition sites.
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          2                 Intro. No. 330, also sponsored by

          3  Council Member Leroy Comrie, is a Local Law to amend

          4  the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

          5  relation to licensing of demolition contractors and

          6  providing for the registration of demolition

          7  contracting businesses.

          8                 And, Intro. No. 338, sponsored by

          9  Council Member Leticia James, a Local Law to amend

         10  the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         11  relation to the notification of community boards and

         12  Council Members of demolition permits.

         13                 The Council is concerned about the

         14  performance of individuals and businesses directly

         15  engaged in demolition work throughout the City of

         16  New York.

         17                 Intro. 3 was drafted to ensure that

         18  the Police Department would receive better notice

         19  from the Department of Buildings of any locations

         20  where legal demolition work is occurring or has

         21  occurred, so that the Police Department, including

         22  the local precincts, as well as the Department of

         23  Buildings, may implement enforcement measures to

         24  stop illegal demolition work.  The legislation also

         25  provides that DOB give notice to Council Members and
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          2  the community board in whose respective districts

          3  the demolition work is occurring or has occurred.

          4  Any persons who engages in illegal demolition work

          5  shall be punished in accordance with the appropriate

          6  fines and penalties.

          7                 Intro. 30- A would require that

          8  Council Members and community boards receive

          9  notification from applicants who intend to seek any

         10  permit for new construction and certain demolition

         11  and alteration permits from the Department of

         12  Buildings.  The bill does not specifically deal with

         13  notification to alter or demolish buildings that

         14  were built over 75 years ago.

         15                 Intro. 132 would create an additional

         16  criminal and civil penalties for any person found

         17  guilty of having conducted demolition work without a

         18  permit on one or two- family dwelling.

         19                 Intro. 265 amends the definitions of

         20  the terms "alterations" and "demolition" contained

         21  in the Building Code, in an attempt to address the

         22  problem of persons who apply for an alteration

         23  permit with the Department of Buildings when they

         24  intend to demolish property.

         25                 Intro. 329 would mandate that a
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          2  demolition site safety coordinator be designated and

          3  present on the work site when any work that requires

          4  a demolition permit is conducted at such site.  Such

          5  demolition site safety coordinator could be

          6  responsible for the safety operations related to

          7  demolition work being performed on the site.

          8                 Intro. 330 would establish a new

          9  requirement for licensing of demolition contractors,

         10  and the registration of demolition contracting

         11  businesses in New York City.

         12                 Intro. 338 concerns the notification

         13  of community boards and Council Members by the

         14  Department of Buildings prior to the issuance of

         15  demolition or removal permits for buildings that are

         16  75 years old or less.  So we have two bills that are

         17  somewhat similar.

         18                 The Committee expects to hear from

         19  knowledgeable professionals in the building industry

         20  who are capable of providing meaningful perspectives

         21  on these seven legislative items.  And we will begin

         22  with testimony by the representatives of the

         23  Department of Buildings.

         24                 And just as a reminder, again, if

         25  anyone who wishes to testify, please sign in with
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          2  the Sergeant- at- Arms.  And if you have any

          3  position on the particular bill, it would also be

          4  helpful if you write on the Appearance card if you

          5  are opposed or support it.

          6                 And also feel free to pick up a copy

          7  of each of the reports and the bills as it has come

          8  to my attention that everyone who was invited to

          9  attend today's hearing received a complete set of

         10  bills on today's agenda.

         11                 I would like to introduce the panel.

         12  But before the panel testifies, I'd like to give my

         13  colleagues who are sponsoring a number of items

         14  before us today to just say a brief word on their

         15  bills.  And I stress a brief word on their bills.

         16                 We've been joined by Ms. Phyllis

         17  Arnold, from the Department of Buildings, who is

         18  here to testify.  She's the General Counsel, is that

         19  correct?  And Mr. Steven Kramer, who is also with

         20  the Department of Buildings, and is the Special

         21  Counsel.

         22                 And we'd like to offer a special

         23  blessing to Council Member Tish James.

         24                 Council Member Avella  --   I guess,

         25  we'll go in alphabetical order  --  you can go
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          2  first.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay.  Thank

          4  you Mr. Chair. And I appreciate the opportunity to

          5  have this bill up for a hearing today.  Very

          6  briefly, we've had a number of situations in this

          7  City where illegal demolition has occurred.  And

          8  unfortunately, under the current rules and

          9  regulations and legislation, all that is done

         10  against these individuals is a simple slap on the

         11  wrist.  And this bill would make it a misdemeanor,

         12  with significant jail time entailed.

         13                 It also codifies a procedure which

         14  sometimes exists, where the Department of Buildings

         15  would notify the local precinct about demolition

         16  without a permit, and would also mandate that the

         17  Council Member and the community board would also be

         18  notified of that.

         19            This is something that simply must be

         20  done, because we have had too many situations where

         21  illegal demolition has occurred, and almost no

         22  penalties or action is taken against those

         23  individuals.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.  And

         25  then if we're going in alphabetical order, I believe
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          2  Council Member Brewer would be next.  Followed by

          3  Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          5  much.  And thank you for this hearing.  Intro. 265,

          6  I actually introduced a while ago.  And it came

          7  about because two buildings in our district, one a

          8  church and one another institution, I believe, were

          9  about to be torn down.  Literally, they had  --

         10  developers had put in a what we considered an

         11  alteration permit, but we felt was really a

         12  demolition permit, because in fact, the permit read

         13  that down to the first floor, the building would be

         14  torn down, and that was considered alteration.  And

         15  we look at that, and think of that as a demolished

         16  building.

         17                 So the purpose of this bill is to

         18  clarify that.  If you're demolishing the building,

         19  it should actually say that, and not call it

         20  alteration.

         21                 We have two instances, thanks to the

         22  Buildings Department, we were able to pull them, and

         23  those buildings are still standing.  But it was only

         24  because of you know, wise calls from constituents

         25  and obviously, the work of the Buildings Department,
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          2  with or office's intervention.

          3                 So that's the purpose, is to clarify

          4  this.  If it's demolition, say that it's demolition

          5  and not call it alteration. Thank you Mr. Chair.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 I have two bills before us today,

          9  Intro. 329 and Intro. 330.  Both which speak to the

         10  fact that in this City, where we have so many

         11  alterations and demolitions going on of large

         12  buildings, that we've had over five accidents in the

         13  last two years.  Major accidents due to scaffolding

         14  collapsing, or roofs collapsing.  And it requires

         15  that we really need to put together laws requiring

         16  that we have a demolition site safety coordinator on

         17  the spot.  Someone that can be overall responsible

         18  and understand all of the rules and regulations of

         19  demolition safety, to ensure that these types of

         20  accidents don't happen anymore.

         21                 And to find out as we researched

         22  this, that we don't have any licensing of demolition

         23  contractors in the City, with all the work that's

         24  being done in this City, is something that we need

         25  to address by the Council.  So I hope that we get
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          2  serious consideration of these two bills today, so

          3  that they can be passed out quickly.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  Next I

          5  believe is Council Member James.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.  And thank you for hearing on my bill,

          8  which is Intro. 338.  This bill concerns the

          9  issuance of demolition or removal permits for

         10  buildings that are 75 years old or less.  It

         11  requires written notice be given by the Department

         12  of Buildings to each respective community board and

         13  Council Member in whose district the building in

         14  question is located.

         15                 This bill came about as a result of

         16  me driving down Washington Avenue one day, and being

         17  blinded by a cloud of dust and debris as a result of

         18  the demolition of a building that was 70 years old,

         19  which was right across the street from my office,

         20  which I knew nothing about.  And almost blinded a

         21  significant number of seniors, who happened to be

         22  going on a trip, and who were visiting my office.

         23  And so, that is why I would like to have notice, and

         24  all elected City Council Members should have notice

         25  as well, with respect to the demolition of buildings
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          2  in their respective Council districts.  But I thank

          3  you for this opportunity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  And

          5  finally, Council Member Michael McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.  And thank you for holding this demolition

          8  derby, in which we address these very important

          9  issues.  You know, when my children were younger, I

         10  used to read to them a Dr. Seus book called Horton

         11  Hears a Who. And the story about this big old

         12  elephant and there was this community of people or

         13  beings, Dr. Seus characters, that needed their help.

         14  But they were very, very small.  And he couldn't

         15  hear them until they all got together and raised

         16  their voices up together to let him know that there

         17  was a problem, and that he could then hear them.

         18                 So I think certainly, the Department

         19  of Buildings, in this case would be Horton, and we

         20  are all the little Who's in Whoville, in this case,

         21  and we've got  --  we're raising our voices in

         22  unison, saying there is a problem with the way the

         23  City does demolition, and issues building permits in

         24  the City.  And that's why we've got this package,

         25  this buffet of bills before you.  And clearly, the
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          2  City Council is very, very concerned.

          3                 With respect to 30- A, it is my

          4  belief that all too often, the community board and

          5  the City Council Members are playing catch up.

          6  Ground is broken, foundations are put in by the time

          7  we realize something is going on.  Buildings are

          8  being hit by the wrecking ball by the time we

          9  realize what's going on.

         10                 And I know in your testimony, you're

         11  going to say, well, we can go to the BIS directory,

         12  but we can only do that after an application has

         13  been granted, as I understand it.  If I'm wrong,

         14  you'll let me know.  But quite simply, what our bill

         15  says, 30- A is, let's put sunshine on the whole

         16  process.  Let's let the community know what's going

         17  on.  Let the City Council Members know what's going

         18  on.  Because if there is an illegal demolition,

         19  we'll find out.  If there's a building going up that

         20  violates the zoning, you can be sure that the

         21  community and the community board members will find

         22  out.  And they should have a chance to do it before

         23  the application is granted, before the permits are

         24  pulled, and before the job has started.  Because my

         25  colleague to the right here, can point  --  Jim Oddo
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          2    --  can point to case where, in his district, he

          3  said these buildings violate the zoning.  He was

          4  told no, but by the time he was vindicated, thank

          5  you, exactly what I was looking for, by the time he

          6  was vindicated, it was too late.  The buildings were

          7  up, and the damage was done.

          8                 So all we're asking is, let's open up

          9  the process, let's bring everybody in.  And let the

         10  community boards and the Council Members help Horton

         11  hear the Who's.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  And we've

         13  also been joined by  --  to my almost far left, but

         14  I guarantee you, not in his philosophy  --  Council

         15  Member Dennis Gallagher.  He missed the opening

         16  joke, so I'm sure he'll pay me back for that one

         17  later.

         18                 But I guess without further ado, we

         19  will hear from the Department of Buildings.  And I

         20  guess Ms. Arnold, because you are a woman, and I

         21  guess my general policy is ladies first.  And also

         22  by title, you are General Counsel.  We'll start with

         23  you.

         24                 MS. ARNOLD: I'm actually passing

         25  today in favor of Mr. Kramer on my left.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: Age before beauty.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: That's what

          4  happens every time I try to do shtick.  And Jimmy

          5  Oddo once told me that I cannot do shtick.  So I

          6  deserve that.

          7                 MR. KRAMER: Good afternoon Chair

          8  Dilan, and members of the Housing and Building

          9  Committee.  My name is Steven Kramer, and I am

         10  Senior Counsel to the Commissioner for the

         11  Department of Buildings.  And I'm here, as you

         12  noted, with Phyllis Arnold, the General Counsel to

         13  the Department.  And we're here to testify and to

         14  answer any questions you may have regarding our

         15  testimony.

         16                 I'm appearing before you to testify

         17  concerning all seven bills, Intros. No. 3, 30- A,

         18  132, 265, 329, and 330, and 338. Each of these seven

         19  bills deals with different aspects of the procedure

         20  the Department uses in granting contractors permits

         21  to conduct demolition work on buildings in the City.

         22                 While I will speak to each bill

         23  individually, at the outset, I would ask you to keep

         24  in mind that the definition of demolition changes,

         25  and may change, pending passage of one of the
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          2  following pieces of legislation, depending upon what

          3  context the word is used.  And because of those

          4  changes, it may in turn affect the need to further

          5  define the intended demolition that we are

          6  targeting.  But it's important in considering

          7  whether and how to change the definitions to

          8  understand that there's a very large amount of

          9  construction activity in the City that involves some

         10  demolition work.  In calendar year 2005, for

         11  example, the Department issued approximately 3,500

         12  demolition permits for demolition that involved at

         13  least 50 percent of the walls of a building, as well

         14  as some work on the foundations.  During that same

         15  time period, the Department issued 66,000 alteration

         16  one and type two permits, almost all of which

         17  involved either interior or exterior demolition.

         18  Some of these 66,000 permits were for very large

         19  jobs, and some were for small, interior type work.

         20  Because of the high volume, I think it's important

         21  that we try to isolate the specific types of work

         22  with which the Council wishes to regulate, so that

         23  we don't end by losing the ability to focus on the

         24  specific types of information we're most interested

         25  in.
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          2                 Turning now to the individual bills.

          3  First, the 30 A.  We understand that this bill is

          4  intended to provide community boards and Council

          5  Members notice of both new building applications and

          6  of demolition applications for buildings that were

          7  built more than 75 years ago.  The bill specifies

          8  that the applicant be responsible for certifying in

          9  writing that notification has been provided to the

         10  Council Member and to the community board in which

         11  the proposed construction or demolition will be

         12  taking place.

         13                 At this time, I would like to take

         14  the opportunity to inform the Council of the

         15  significant operational change that we are making,

         16  that we believe will satisfy at least some of the

         17  Council's request for this information, insofar as

         18  it relates to demolition of all buildings,

         19  regardless of age.  And in fact, it will also assist

         20  in the alerting of new buildings.  Allow me to

         21  describe the current process to obtain a demolition

         22  permit for an entire building.  Right now, the

         23  processing of the demolition application, which we

         24  call the PW- 1 Form, and the permit application, the

         25  PW- 2, will often occur on the same day.  However,
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          2  there's a great deal of prep work by the developer

          3  and the Department that is invisible to the public,

          4  that occurs long before this happens.  First, the

          5  applicant must go to a variety of agencies.  For

          6  example, the applicant must go to the Department of

          7  Health and Mental Hygiene for a rat abatement

          8  certificate, and to DEP, the Department of

          9  Environmental Protection, for cut off of water and

         10  sewer service, if that's going to be part of the

         11  application.  The applicant must also obtain proof

         12  from private utilities, such as ConEd or Keyspan,

         13  that gas and electricity has been shut off at the

         14  site, for obvious safety purposes.

         15                 Once paperwork from all these sources

         16  is collected, under current procedures, the

         17  applicant then comes to the Department of Buildings

         18  BEST unit.  BEST is an acronym for our Building

         19  Enforcement Safety Team, a squad of inspectors that

         20  oversees construction safety in the City.  And

         21  furnishes proof of compliance with all the required

         22  procedures.  BEST goes over the demolition protocol

         23  for the site, determines if the zone of safety is

         24  required, and whatever else may be required for

         25  safety purposes. And then inspects the site to
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          2  ensure that the required safety measures are

          3  implemented.

          4                 Once BEST gives its approval, the

          5  applicant receives a copy of the report, takes it to

          6  the respective borough, pays its fees, and files a

          7  demolition application.  The information is data

          8  entered, and is then, for the first time, displayed

          9  on BIS, the Building Information System.  It is then

         10  that the public can see that a demolition is

         11  planned.  Once the PW- 1 application is processed, a

         12  fairly straight forward task, a permit application,

         13  a PW- 2 can be accepted.  And a permit can only be

         14  issued if the contractor's insurance is in order.

         15                 In New York City, demolition may be

         16  performed by hand, using only limited equipment, or

         17  if heavy- duty machinery chemicals equipment is to

         18  be used, then a separate approval from the borough

         19  office of the Department is also necessary.

         20                 Now, for our operational change.  As

         21  many of you know, the Commissioner has directed the

         22  Department to take numerous steps to use information

         23  technology to make our agency more transparent to

         24  the public, to elected officials, and to industry.

         25  One of the last remaining applications to be
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          2  automated is the demolition permit.

          3                 The way we envision this new process

          4  is, that before going to BEST for approval,

          5  applicants will be required to submit their

          6  applications for demolition so as to be recorded in

          7  BIS. Under the new procedures, which should be in

          8  operation before Labor Day this year, demolition

          9  jobs will be entered, tracked in our system, and

         10  accessible to the public at the very initial

         11  application state, not at the end.  Much earlier

         12  than under our current procedures.

         13                 Another change will be that when the

         14  BEST squad goes to a site to conduct a pre-

         15  demolition inspection, we will require that the

         16  signage be posted at the site, notifying the public

         17  of the impending demolition.

         18                 With earlier input of demolition

         19  applications on BIS, and mandatory signage at the

         20  proposed demolition site, we believe that the intent

         21  of this bill to give notice to the public and to

         22  elected officials is addressed, and will, in fact,

         23  provide notification consistent with the 10- day

         24  period requested in the legislation.

         25                 All information in BIS may be sorted
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          2  by date and community board.  Hence, any elected

          3  official interested in demolitions can simply ask a

          4  staff member to download, on a daily, weekly, or

          5  monthly basis, by community board, all demolition

          6  applications.  Or, for that matter, all new building

          7  and alteration applications as well that have been

          8  filed with the Department. This is a far less

          9  cumbersome way of providing notice than adding an

         10  additional bureaucratic requirement to the applicant

         11  of providing proof to our clerks of mailing to any

         12  set of individuals. And, a major improvement, in the

         13  Fall, you will be able to search all properties by

         14  zip code, so that you could  --  right now, you have

         15  to go in by community board.  This way, you can get

         16  all applications, all new building applications by

         17  zip code.

         18                 And in addition, because  as I

         19  mentioned before, because the demolition application

         20  is now going to be filed at the beginning of the

         21  paperwork process, rather than the end, there won't

         22  be these instances where the application and permit

         23  are issued on the same day, and you only learn about

         24  it the next day, or when you see the wrecking truck

         25  right at the site.
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          2                 Our BIS system is now receiving over

          3  380,000 hits per day, proof that the public finds it

          4  useful and that it's user friendly.  If you, or any

          5  of your staff would like to receive training on how

          6  to look up this information, we will happy to

          7  provide it.  However, to require applicants to

          8  provide proof to the Department in a written form

          9  that they have separately notified elected officials

         10  and community board members adds a paperwork burden

         11  of the type we're trying to move away from.

         12                 In the Department's view, it's

         13  important that we not create so much paperwork, that

         14  we get distracted from the critical mission of the

         15  Department, which is public safety.

         16                 As for notification of buildings

         17  being demolished that are over 75 years of age, as

         18  is also provided for in Intro. 30- A, unfortunately,

         19  at the moment, that is not a practical benchmark in

         20  our information database.  As a general rule, there

         21  is nothing in BIS that indicates the age of a

         22  building, except for those instances during the last

         23  15 years when BIS has been online, when we have new

         24  building applications on file, and a certificate of

         25  occupancy has been issued.  If reliable information
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          2  on the age of buildings is available from other

          3  agencies or on other websites, we would be glad to

          4  work with you to determine whether the information

          5  is importable into our computer database, in a way

          6  that would make this bill feasible.  We certainly

          7  have no problem with that as a conceptual matter.

          8                 Also, Section 191- c of the bill also

          9  uses the phrase, "raze or remove" an existing

         10  building.  These are not defined terms, and should,

         11  we think, be made consistent with the term

         12  demolition discussed in other bills.

         13                 Turning now to Intro. Three.  Intro.

         14  Three appears to us as a well- intended bill, which,

         15  in actuality, codifies the system presently in place

         16  between the New York City Police Department and the

         17  Department.  When any work is done without a permit,

         18  whether demolition or otherwise, a stop work order

         19  is issued by the Department.  Current practice has

         20  the Department faxing over copies of all stop work

         21  orders to the local precinct where they are kept on

         22  file for reference for complaints, or emergencies

         23  that come to the Police Department.

         24                 Additionally, in cases when a

         25  Department inspector requests Police Department
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          2  presence at a construction site, the inspector, or a

          3  representative from the Department's borough office

          4  will call the local precinct, and the police

          5  accompaniment is of course then provided.

          6                 The current system allows the

          7  Department to execute its charter mandate of keeping

          8  construction sites safe, and has the Police

          9  Department performing its duty of keeping the peace.

         10    It's a system that has served both agencies well,

         11  and that we have found is operationally

         12  satisfactory, and does not impose a burden on

         13  resources or efficiency on either agency.

         14  Accordingly, Intro. Three's provisions regarding the

         15  relationship between the Department of Buildings and

         16  the NYPD are not necessary.

         17                 With regard to the requirement in

         18  Intro. Three for the Department to notify elected

         19  officials and community boards of violations issued

         20  for illegal demolitions, I do want to inform you

         21  that we're working hard to enhance our website, to

         22  make it easier to access this type of information.

         23  For example, in July, you will be able to use BIS to

         24  easily identify whether a stop work order exists for

         25  a property.  Which will include all properties which
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          2  we have cited for demolition without a permit.  By

          3  simply typing in a property address, if a stop work

          4  order has been issued, a large red banner will

          5  appear across the screen.  Right now, you have to

          6  know a series of computer codes in order to

          7  determine whether or not a stop work order has been

          8  issued.

          9                 We think these changes will

         10  accomplish the goals of the section of the bill

         11  requiring notification to the Council and community

         12  board of illegal demolitions without a permit.  And

         13  again, the Commissioner wants me to assure you that

         14  our staff is available to assist your staff in

         15  navigating BIS, even before these operational

         16  improvements are made.  This would be a significant

         17  operational lift that would impose a burden on our

         18  administrative staff and our inspectors, and we

         19  respectively request that you reconsider the request

         20  for the information with all stop work orders.

         21                 The Department has made tremendous

         22  strides in making all of our permits and violations

         23  accessible via our BIS on the website.  Currently,

         24  stop work orders are tracked on the web, and the

         25  data are capable of being sorted by community board.
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          2                 Turning now to Intro. 132, this bill

          3  raises the fines for conducting demolition without a

          4  permit on one and two family homes to not more than

          5  $10,000, as well as provides for the person to be

          6  subjected to possible criminal and civil penalties.

          7  We are aware that the subject of fines and penalties

          8  for violation of the Building Code is one that many

          9  Council Members have expressed an interest in.

         10  Raising the maximum fine in this area is certainly

         11  an idea that should be considered. However, because

         12  this also is an area that we are considering

         13  revising and discussing in detail with you in the

         14  Model Code provisions that we're currently drafting,

         15  it may make most sense for us to defer discussions

         16  on 132 until we take up discussions of the Model

         17  Code penalty provisions more generally.

         18                 Turning now to Intro. 265, which

         19  changes the definitions of alterations and

         20  demolitions that are now found in the Building Code.

         21    The definition of alteration and demolition is one

         22  of the most commonly- asked questions at the

         23  Department.  We agree that the current definition

         24  needs to be amended in order to more accurately

         25  reflect the work that is being done at a job site.
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          2                 However, we feel that further

          3  discussion with you is necessary on Intro. 265, so

          4  that we can all agree on what the end result of the

          5  legislation should be.  Does the Council envision

          6  that the whole universe of actions currently

          7  permitted as alterations, such as the addition of

          8  sunrooms, greenhouses, or other horizontal

          9  expansions to an existing building, almost all of

         10  which involve some demolition, be considered a

         11  demolition and require a demolition permit?  Or is

         12  this, as we believe, an effort to stop new buildings

         13  from being erected in the guise of alterations?

         14                 Either way, in order to implement

         15  this definitional change to the thousands of filings

         16  we get each year, certain nuances, such as the 30

         17  percent designation need to be amended, in order for

         18  an inspector to be easily able to identify when

         19  something has been demolished further than it should

         20  have been under an alteration application.  We look

         21  forward to a meeting with you to discuss this

         22  proposal.  Certainly many members of the public

         23  understandably are confused why a contractor can

         24  leave on 50 percent of the walls of the building

         25  standing, and rebuild the remainder under what the
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          2  Department deems an alteration Type One application.

          3                 Next, I'd like to discuss Intros. 329

          4  and 330 together.  Both of which involve demolition

          5  safety.  Intro. 329 would require a new site safety

          6  coordinator at all demolition sites, and Intro. 330

          7  goes further, and mandates the licensing of

          8  demolition contractors, and the registration of

          9  demolition contracting businesses.

         10                 Although the requirement of a site

         11  safety coordinator for major demolition jobs is an

         12  idea that we think is well worth exploring, we also

         13  think that Intro. 330's requirement of licensing may

         14  be the better alternative to pursue to ensure the

         15  safety of demolition sites.  The Department agrees

         16  that the licensing of demolition contractors

         17  provides an opportunity for us to require greater

         18  accountability from these individuals.  And we are

         19  interested in the prospect of licensing or

         20  registering them.

         21                 However, we do have certain

         22  reservations with regard to the bill as currently

         23  drafted, and we would like to discuss with you so as

         24  to iron out certain technical problems.  For

         25  example, the requirement in Intro. 330 that an
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          2  applicant for a demolition license be a registered

          3  architect or a professional engineer does not

          4  necessarily satisfy the real practical experience

          5  that is necessary in order to perform a demolition

          6  safety.  We would recommend that in addition to the

          7  professional requirements that a minimum of five

          8  years of practical experience in demolition work be

          9  a requirement as well.  Also, the prospective

         10  licensees should be required to have taken basic

         11  safety courses, such as those given by OSHA, and be

         12  able to demonstrate a familiarity with Code

         13  provisions involved in demolitions.  We are eager to

         14  discuss this matter with you further.

         15                 The Department strongly recommends

         16  pursuing licensing or registration for individuals,

         17  and does not suggest the registration of the

         18  demolition contracting business.  Our regulatory

         19  scheme is directed towards safety, toward ensuring

         20  that competent, trained individuals are performing

         21  the trades for which they are licensed.  The

         22  practical reality is, the Department's investigation

         23  units have the expertise in the licensing of

         24  individuals, and not expertise on licensing of

         25  corporations or partnerships.  While other agencies,
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          2  such as the Business Integrity Commission, have

          3  experience in dealing with the licensing of

          4  corporations, the corporate policing called for by

          5  this bill would be a new endeavor for the

          6  Department, and would, I fear, distract the agency

          7  from its core mission, protecting public safety.  We

          8  would need a whole new group of investigator and

          9  lawyers to adequately perform this task of going

         10  behind the corporate veil and looking at officers

         11  and owners.

         12                 Another important point we'd like to

         13  make is that we believe this licensing should only

         14  be applicable to those demolition contractors whose

         15  main line of work is structural demolition, not

         16  interior demolition.

         17                 Finally, Intro. 338 would require

         18  five day's notice to be given to community boards

         19  and Council Members when a demolition permit is

         20  issued for a building that is 75 years or older.  As

         21  we previously mentioned in our discussion of 30- A,

         22  which has a similar provision, the Department does

         23  not have a mechanism in place that will allow us to

         24  determine the age of a building. However, we do

         25  believe that our comments made earlier on Intro. 30
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          2  A are relevant here, and the description of our

          3  proposed new process for demolition permit

          4  applications, and our improvements to BIS will be

          5  able to address what we believe to be many of the

          6  concerns that this proposed legislation is intended

          7  to address.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  comment on these seven bills.  And I will now be

         10  happy to answer amy questions you may have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We certainly thank

         12  you for your testimony.  I'd just like to

         13  acknowledge the presence of some members who have

         14  joined us.  To the far left, Council Member Maria

         15  Baez.  Then Council Member Joel Rivera, as well as

         16  Council Members Bob Jackson and Rosie Mendez.

         17                 I'm going to take the privilege of

         18  the Chair to defer my questions till later.  And I

         19  believe the first Council Member up to ask questions

         20  is Council Member Michael McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         22  I understand Council Member Oddo and Council Member

         23  Avella have to get somewhere even more pressing than

         24  me, so if you want to let them go in their --  I

         25  could move from first to third, and then I'll bump.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I know the Mets

          3  have been trying to get from first to third all

          4  season, but that's   --  so if you're saying you

          5  want to let Council Member and Avella go first,

          6  that's okay, but now I have to --  Okay, so I think

          7  we're at Avella, Oddo, McMahon.  In that order.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: We should

          9  debating amongst our selves who should go first and

         10  who should be the meanest first. I guess it's up to

         11  me.  Since Jimmy has said I could go first.

         12                 I do apologize, but I have to go to a

         13  Board of Statements and Appeals hearing for an item

         14  in my district.

         15                 Two quick things.  First of all, I

         16  find it  --  this is a general comment  --  that

         17  listening to your testimony, one would come away

         18  with the fact that everything is fine at the

         19  Department of Buildings.  There's nothing wrong.

         20  There's no need for his legislation.  Everything is

         21  working.  Why are we doing this?  I have to say, in

         22  reading this, and listening to it as you're

         23  speaking, I think to myself, you have to be in a

         24  dream world.  You obviously have no conception of

         25  what's really going on out there in the real world.

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  If you did, I think you'd be a little more

          3  responsive to the bills, a little more cooperative

          4  working with the City Council to try to get some of

          5  these things accomplished.  Some of the things you

          6  mentioned in here as happening, especially as it

          7  relates to my bill, doesn't happen. That's the

          8  reason the bill has been introduced.

          9                 It may, in theory, be on a piece of

         10  paper that the Police Department and the Department

         11  of Buildings work together. It doesn't happen.  And

         12  you can call the Police Department and maybe they

         13  won't tell you officially, but unofficially, they

         14  tell us, no, we're not doing that.  We don't get

         15  that.  We're not going out there.  We don't go out

         16  there.  Et cetera.

         17                 When is the Administration going to

         18  get the message? Really.  Because it's clear you

         19  don't.  And I hate to put it this way, but I've got

         20  my constituents, my colleagues, their constituents,

         21  we're fed up.  And this is an example  --  what

         22  we're trying to do here today is get some real

         23  dialogue.  And I didn't see it in your testimony.  I

         24  did not see it.

         25                 In relation to my bill, you ignored
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          2  the whole fact that I'm trying to increase the

          3  penalty for illegal demolition from just a slap on

          4  the wrist to a misdemeanor.  You didn't even mention

          5  that in your testimony.

          6                 I just find your testimony a

          7  disgrace.  I don't even want a response.  Because I

          8  am very disappointed in the Administration and the

          9  agency.  You could do a lot better.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I don't know  --

         11  do you care to respond?

         12                 MR. KRAMER: No, I do not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         14  Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you Mr.

         16  Chairman.  And thank you Council Member McMahon.  I

         17  have a two o'clock with the Speaker, then I have to

         18  run to   --

         19                 A few weeks ago, three weeks ago, two

         20  weeks ago, we had the first meeting of the Task

         21  Force.  And it was in Council Member Vacca's

         22  district in the Bronx.  And it was a wonderful

         23  turnout.  And folks had their three minutes, and I

         24  listed, and I have my actual notes from that meeting

         25  where I just listed out issues that people brought
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          2  up.  And the interesting things was that had I taken

          3  Council Member McMahon, put a blindfold on him,

          4  driven him around New York, and then dumped him into

          5  the auditorium that night and asked him which school

          6  in Staten Island he was in, he would have guessed

          7  one in his district or my district, because the very

          8  things that people in the Bronx, in Council Member

          9  Vacca's district, the very things they were saying

         10  are the same things that I've heard, and Michael has

         11  heard in Staten Island, and the same thing I know

         12  Tony and others have heard in Queens and beyond.

         13                 And it's interesting that Council

         14  Member Avella picked on the stop work order, because

         15  the second thing that was mentioned, and I have

         16  check marks next to it, and then again later on, the

         17  folks in the Bronx said time and time again that

         18  night, and we've heard it from the other boroughs,

         19  the stop work order process that you talked about,

         20  in the communities, is not working.  There is no

         21  teeth to them.  And I could speak from first hand on

         22  Staten Island, where we don't have enough police

         23  officers doing police work, this is beyond low

         24  priority.  It doesn't happen.  And apparently,

         25  that's the case in the Bronx.  That's what I heard
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          2  two weeks ago.  And apparently, that's the case in

          3  portions of Queens.           So we need to go back.

          4    Because  --  and this is a consistent theme that

          5  I've gotten.  There is a disconnect between what's

          6  happening or not happening in the communities and

          7  some of the stuff that the Department is saying.

          8  And we've found a nice place where we're talking to

          9  each other now, instead of me yelling at.  And I'm

         10  appreciative of the efforts to date, but we really

         11  have to go back.  If you truly believe that this is

         12  working, then we need to go back and sit down again.

         13    Because the people are telling us that it's not

         14  working.  There is no enforcement of stop work

         15  orders.  The Police Department in Staten Island and

         16  in the Bronx, and apparently in Queens and beyond,

         17  are not going out enforcing them.  So we need to

         18  check that.

         19                 The only other comment I want to make

         20  is a more general one.  And I know we're working

         21  together, and I appreciate the new level of

         22  cooperation, and Marietta has been great.  And we're

         23  working on the licensing of contractors.  I just

         24  want to make a point that in your testimony, it says

         25  that you know, this  -- anytime we license anything
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          2  within your agency, it's doing something that you're

          3  not used to doing, it's an added burden.  And you

          4  say that it would sort of take away, or your

          5  language, "distract the agency of its core mission,

          6  protecting public safety".  We see a connection

          7  between licensing and public safety, and we see that

          8  it's really hand in glove.  And it's part of your

          9  overall mission.

         10                 But with that said, I have to tell

         11  you, that the stop work order, we need to go back

         12  and work, you know, without the cameras and in a

         13  private room, and try to fix it.  Because right now,

         14  it's not working.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Thank

         15  you, my colleagues, for your indulgence.

         16                 MR. KRAMER: I just would like to add

         17  that we agree that the licensing and registration of

         18  individuals and the testing of individuals on the

         19  job site is a way to improve public safety. I was

         20  referring more to the concept of licensing

         21  corporations, which is really  --  really goes to

         22  tax issues, you know, organized crime type issues,

         23  which are also legitimate concerns, but we don't

         24  think those are concerns  --  that should be

         25  concerns of our agency.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay.  Point

          3  well taken, because we've had that discussion.

          4                 MR. KRAMER: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

          6  McMahon, you're on third.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 And I know that you Counsels are

         10  probably sitting there saying, "You know, we're

         11  sitting here for another time, listening to

         12  complaints about the Buildings Department".  And

         13  maybe it's not a pleasant part of your job.  But I

         14  want to tell you about a very unpleasant part about

         15  my job.  And I think, obviously, the other Council

         16  Member feel as well.  No matter where we go in our

         17  district, we re bombarded by questions from

         18  constituents about what is going on in that corner

         19  where there's now a building being torn down or

         20  built?  And how come you didn't tell us about it?

         21  And are they following the rules?  And invariably,

         22  we are playing catch up, because we don't know about

         23  these things coming, until they are happening.

         24                 Now in your testimony, you say that

         25  we can go to the BIS system and find out.  But we
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          2  won't know  --  we don't know that someone is

          3  applying to do something until the application is

          4  either granted, posted, or the job has started.  So

          5  we can never get involved in the process at a sooner

          6  date.

          7                 And then you say, well, in your

          8  testimony, well, we don't want to undertake this

          9  notification in the case of building permits being

         10  filed for, because an application is even filed for,

         11  because it creates an extra burden of paperwork.

         12  Yet you go through all the steps that someone who is

         13  either demolishing a building has to go through.

         14  What burden is it to have a piece of paper, one

         15  paragraph saying, on May 16th, I caused to be mailed

         16  to Councilman McMahon and the Community Board One, a

         17  simple statement as to what is being applied for?

         18  One statement signed?  How difficulty is that?  How

         19  do you see that creating such a great paper

         20  bureaucracy that you want to deprive the public of

         21  fair representation in making sure that building

         22  applications are appropriate under existing zoning

         23  laws?  And that demolition permits are appropriate

         24  under existing laws?  And are not being taken out

         25  for buildings that are possibly landmarks.  How do
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          2  you see that as such a great burden or hurdle?

          3                 MR. KRAMER: Let me answer  --  you

          4  had several questions there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Because

          6  again, you said the role of the Building Department

          7  is public safety.  Okay?  So we wan to make sure

          8  that the public is informed and safe.  We're not

          9  here for the builders.  We're here for the public.

         10  So tell me how that little simple step of prior

         11  knowledge, knowledge which you agree the public

         12  should have, you just agreed that you'd comment at a

         13  later day, tell me how that little step is such a

         14  great bureaucratic burden, impeding the progress of

         15  the Building Department moving into the 21st

         16  century?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: First of all,

         18  applications, as I indicated in my testimony, an

         19  application is not a building permit. An application

         20  is really just that.  It's an application to the

         21  Department to get permission for a building permit.

         22  And the applications are  --  as soon as they're

         23  filed with the Department --  are available on the

         24  web.  And what I said was, regarding demolition

         25  permits, right now, the length of time between the
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          2  filing of the application and the issuance of the

          3  permit is far too short to give adequate notice to

          4  you.  And we're in a complete agreement on that.

          5  And we are changing that process.  And this Summer,

          6  there's going to be a space of time between the

          7  filing of the application and the issuance of permit

          8  to make sure that you have  --  you and members of

          9  the public, have an opportunity to be aware of that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But only if I

         11  know enough to go look up an address.  But if I

         12  don't know that, if there are no rumors through the

         13  neighborhood in the community, and I don't know that

         14  an application is being filed for building or for

         15  demolition, I won't know to look until the work has

         16  begun.

         17                 MR. KRAMER: Well, you know, we have

         18   --  it's true that there are some 75,000

         19  applications for demolitions, alterations one and

         20  type two, filed per year.  And it's a large number.

         21  In fact, what we have done is we've made them

         22  sortable by community board, which we think is a

         23  pretty good way  --  you can certainly ask the

         24  District Manager  --  and I know that many District

         25  Managers do look and sort on a weekly basis.  And in
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          2  addition, this Summer, we're going to be able to

          3  sort by zip code.

          4                 So you know, it's a question really

          5  choosing to look.  I mean, there's a tremendous

          6  amount of information, as you know, and --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Why should

          8  the burden be on me and the community, and not on

          9  the person applying?  My bill puts the burden on the

         10  applicant to notify.  You put the burden on the

         11  community to sit there at the computer all day and

         12  look.  Why not give a simple notice?  If you want to

         13  cut down on paperwork, make it by e- mail.  Why not

         14  put the burden on the applicant?  Why do you insist

         15  putting the burden on the City Council person or the

         16  community board, or somebody in the neighborhood to

         17  sit there every day and troll through the BIS to

         18  find out what's been applied, instead of having an

         19  affirmative action taken by a builder or an

         20  applicant for building or demolition.  I don't

         21  understand the goal. That information should be

         22  available.  I think you are, right?

         23  You're not trying to hide anything.

         24                 MR. KRAMER: Not only do I agree that

         25  the goal  -- we have made the information available,
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          2  so that people who care can look.  But you know,

          3  it's a question  --  I mean, that's what the

          4  advantage of being in the 21st century is, is that

          5  we have made it available to anyone who is

          6  interested in the information can simply go on the

          7  web and look.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: You see, but

          9  it's that haughty indifferent attitude.  Anybody who

         10  cares can go look.  I don't know how you can say

         11  that.  Do you think that we don't care? Do you think

         12  that we have the staff  --  do you think I have the

         13  staffing to sit somebody on the computer all day and

         14  troll through BIS?  As opposed to getting an

         15  affirmative notice?  I don't understand your

         16  indifference to the fact that people are not getting

         17  the notification, and we're running around after

         18  building foundations are sunk, and trying to find

         19  out what's going on, and is this in conformity of

         20  the law.

         21                 And you know what?  Quite often,

         22  we're finding that the permit was issued improperly.

         23    By mistake.  And if we had been on the case

         24  sooner, we could have helped.  Do you know what we

         25  find sometimes?  There are changes in the City
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          2  Planning zoning laws and they're not docketed in the

          3  Buildings Department.  We found that on Staten

          4  Island.  And we've stopped building by doing it.

          5  But only because we got wind of the fact that

          6  something was coming.  And there was no application

          7  filed, and we're not sitting there trolling.

          8                 Why won't you give us affirmative

          9  notice?  That's a question.  It's requesting an

         10  answer.

         11                 MR. KRAMER.  If there's no

         12  application filed, we could not give you notice.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And if an

         14  application  -- oh, very cute.  --  And if an

         15  application is filed, why don't you want to give us

         16  notice?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: I believe that we do give

         18  you notice. It's on the web, if you choose to look.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: You just gave

         20  me more impetus to make sure this bill gets passed.

         21  That is the most  -- Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Council

         23  Member McMahon.

         24                 Council Member Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.
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          2  Thank you very much.  I have a question about Intro.

          3    --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, that was my

          5  mistake.  But you can continue.  Comrie was supposed

          6  to be next.  It was my error.  Comrie, you'll be

          7  after Council Member Brewer.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          9  I'll be very quick.  Intro. 265.  Yes, I do want to

         10  clarify, so that new buildings are not erected as

         11  alterations.  You asked about sunroofs, and so on.

         12  I'm not interested in that.  But my question is,

         13  when a person, when a developer applies for these

         14  permits, sometimes I think, to avoid the word

         15  demolition, they do apply for an alteration, which

         16  looks like, if you are the lay person anyway, it's a

         17  demolition.

         18                 So what is the process?  How would a

         19  developer decide to do alteration versus demolition,

         20  in terms of the permit. I mean, maybe he's not clear

         21  either.

         22                 MR. KRAMER: Well, we have issued

         23  technical guidelines, technical guidances for

         24  builders as to whether or not they should file an

         25  alteration or a demolition permit. Essentially, the
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          2  current rule is, is that you need to leave  --  if

          3  you're taking less than 50 percent of the walls

          4  down, and you're not working on the foundation, you

          5  do not need to file a demolition application.  In

          6  terms of  --  I mean, there are  --  I think you're

          7  correct  --  they're saying they really are the

          8  functional equivalent.  And we believe, and we agree

          9  with you, that perhaps that should be reduced to you

         10  know, 25 percent, if you're taking 25 percent or

         11  more of the walls down, you can file a demolition

         12  application, which would trigger the use of our BEST

         13  squad, and the checkoff list.  We actually think

         14  that's a good idea.  I mean, we said there are

         15  issues as to whether it's 25 percent or 30 percent,

         16  things like that, which would assist the inspectors

         17  who would go out to be able to more easily judge

         18  whether or not there's been a violation.

         19                 I mean, the additional paperwork

         20  involved in filing for a demolition application is

         21  not insignificant.  So we understand historically

         22  why, in may have been the larger amount. But we

         23  agree with you and we think we can do that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  And

         25  then  --  I mean, I'm glad to hear that, because
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          2  obviously, from the community perspective, I guess

          3  we think that sometimes when alteration is filed for

          4  when it looks like, and feels like, and talks like

          5  demolition, people are trying to get around

          6  something.  So obviously, they are.  And that's why

          7  they do it.  So this would be clarified.

          8                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The next

         10  question I have is just picking up on Council Member

         11  McMahon.  And this is probably my ignorance, but

         12  when you send a fax or e- mail, it says here fax, to

         13  the Police Department, why couldn't you also send

         14  one  --  or whatever the means of communication, to

         15  the community board and the elected officials?

         16                 MR. KRAMER: You know, I think that

         17  ultimately, if we could get into an e- mail system,

         18  we probably could.  One of the greatest problems  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But you could

         20  do like the Fax --  fast  --

         21                 MR. KRAMER: We actually do a hard fax

         22    --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.  But

         24  you could do a Fastfax.  You just program it.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Right. I mean, what I
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          2  think the issue here, and   --  is that you know, we

          3  really see this with the 311 system.  Sometimes you

          4  get so much information that the information becomes

          5  static.  And you have to need a screen to

          6  distinguish between what's static out there, what's

          7  noise, and what's really important.  And perhaps

          8  that's really the concern that Councilman Avella

          9  had, with respect to the stop work orders.  These

         10  stop work orders are given to the Police Department,

         11  but perhaps they're given too many of them.  And

         12  they obviously have a crime- fighting role to play,

         13  which you know, generally takes priority over a stop

         14  work order, which may just involve a zoning issue.

         15  Or it might just involve work at night, which, of

         16  course, is a tremendous quality of life issue.  But

         17  by the next morning, the stop work order will be

         18  lifted, and it's not something which would

         19  necessarily rise to the highest level.

         20                 So you know, it's really just a

         21  question of you know, when you start faxing or you

         22  know, giving larger and larger amounts of

         23  information to larger numbers of people, and we all

         24  see it on our e- mail screens, you know, you just

         25  delete it without even looking at it.
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          2                 And you know, we have something which

          3  we've developed this year called  --  or last year

          4   --  called the Required Items List.  The number of

          5  required items for each different process in the

          6  Buildings Department.  And it is a booklet that is

          7  you know, 30 or 40 pages long, and each of those

          8  required items has a history to it.  And it was

          9  important in one year.  And we've tried to reduce

         10  the numbers of required items, but sometimes it

         11  becomes harder and harder to operate efficiently.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.  But

         13  I'm just saying, it think it makes sense, on the

         14  notification, and I think you should reconsider.

         15  Because Council Member McMahon's request  -- I mean,

         16  DoITT is doing that now, and in the very near

         17  future, by the June 1st, they will be releasing all

         18  311 data to all community boards and Council

         19  Members.  It took a year, but under our bill,

         20  they're doing it.  And you talk about a lot of

         21  information.  That's a lot of information.  So with

         22  all due respect, 75,000 permits is not a lot

         23  compared to what DoITT is releasing.

         24                 So I'm just saying, the mechanics are

         25  there, within the City apparatus.  And to be able to
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          2  even piggyback on what they're doing is something to

          3  think about.

          4                 MR. KRAMER: No, I think that  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's not  --

          6  I'm just saying, DoITT has spent one year working on

          7  it, to the credit of the Commissioners, and they now

          8  have a system that all 311 data will be broken up by

          9  community board and Council district.  You might be

         10  able to piggyback that, in some kind of platforming,

         11  to do this, what Council Member McMahon is

         12  requesting.

         13                 We don't mind getting a lot of

         14  information if it's relevant to our district.

         15                 MR. KRAMER: No, I think actually you

         16  know, the point is that a lot of these are

         17  expectations that are rising due to the availability

         18  of information.  And I think the point that you make

         19  is well taken.  I mean for example, we are now able

         20   --  through of course DoITT's help  --  to sort by

         21  zip code.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right, I know

         23  that.

         24                 MR. KRAMER: And we may well be able

         25  to  --  if you give us you know, the community board
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          2  give us their addresses, we might be able to do on

          3  an automated basis.  And if we could, that would be

          4  absolutely  --  we would be delighted to give you

          5  the information on you know, anything that's entered

          6  into BIS by communities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You might be

          8  able to fulfill Mr. McMahon's request.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: It's certainly something

         10  that is conceivable.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Council

         14  Member Brewer. Next is Council Member Comrie.  And I

         15  just want to thank Council Member Comrie for being

         16  patient in allowing me to adjust the order to

         17  accommodate other members.  So I want to thank the

         18  Council Member.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No problem Mr.

         20  Chair.  I'll be first at the next hearing.

         21                 Before I talk about my specific

         22  things, I just want to echo what Council Member

         23  McMahon and Council Member Brewer said about the

         24  ability for notification.  If there's so much going

         25  on in the pre- registration or the pre- application
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          2  for the permit, where you have a BEST team that's

          3  going out, where you have permits that have to be

          4  required from  --  I'm not loud enough?  --  Where

          5  you have permits that are required from the

          6  utilities and other, so many other places, and all

          7  of that protocol has to be put in, it should  --

          8  it's almost amazing to me your reticence to just

          9  send out a fax or do a blast fax to everyone, which

         10  is not paper intrusive, because it doesn't generate

         11  paper from your end.  And they don't have to do it.

         12  The applicant  --  and Councilman McMahon is

         13  reminding me that if the applicants is doing it,

         14  then it would be in the applicant's best order.  I

         15  can tell you that in my district that are trying to

         16  understand the BIS and actually work the BIS are

         17  frustrated because you can't put in multiple

         18  complaints in BIS, you can't do multiple requests in

         19  BIS, and if you access BIS more than once a day, it

         20  crashes on you.  So I look forward to your improving

         21  that, and actually having opportunities to do some

         22  demonstrations so that people can access it.  The

         23  people in my district, where my median income is

         24  almost $60,000 a year, they have computers, and

         25  they're trying to access the Building Department for
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          2  information through automation.  And they're still

          3  frustrated.

          4                 So I think that   --  and the red

          5  flag is when some thing happens next to their home.

          6  And it's unfortunate that they can't get prior

          7  notice to that.

          8                 But just some detail questions.  You

          9  said that when the BEST squad goes over the

         10  demolition protocol for the site, they're

         11  determining if a zone of safety is required,

         12  whatever else my be required.  And then inspect the

         13  site to ensure that the required safety measures

         14  have been implemented.  What kind of detail does a

         15  demolitions protocol entail?  And how do you

         16  determine the parameters for a zone of safety?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: Well, we have a

         18  demolition checklist, which I'd be glad to share

         19  with you, which is quite a detailed list.  The zone

         20  of safety is very often  --  for example, mechanical

         21  demolition is going to take place, and there's a

         22  sidewalk shed erected.  The BEST squad might say to

         23  the contractor to ask for a sidewalk closing or a

         24  street closing permit to close the sidewalk or close

         25  the lane of traffic, so as to make sure that,
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          2  because of the use of mechanical equipment, there's

          3  always the danger of flying debris.  That would be a

          4  very typical thing.

          5                 They would also check to see whether

          6  or not, if it were, for example, an excavation and

          7  demolition that was going to go in between two older

          8  buildings, that adequate support was put in for the

          9  buildings next door.

         10                 Another common problem, and can

         11  become serious, is waterproofing the adjacent

         12  buildings, if the building you're taking down

         13  exposes a party wall, that can also present a

         14  problem.

         15                 But we have a whole lengthy

         16  checklist, which I'd be glad to share with you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And

         18  just to move towards my bill,  --  right.  What is

         19  the frequency of inspections by the BEST squad once

         20  the protocol has been determined?  If there's a

         21  safety protocol required.  What's the level one

         22  protocol, or a safety shed.  If it's necessary to

         23  block a sidewalk, wouldn't that require a higher

         24  level of frequency and reinspections?  What's the

         25  protocol for that?  Do they  --  is there a wait for
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          2  a complaint?  Is it a physical observation?  Or

          3  what?

          4                 MR. KRAMER: Well, there are both.

          5  There are of course, complaint- generated

          6  inspections.  And in addition, we have sweeps where

          7  the BEST squad is out on the street inspecting

          8  sites.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But is there a

         10  threshold?  Is there a level A, a level B, a level

         11  C?  If you're doing a construction to   --

         12                 MR. KRAMER: I'm actually don't know.

         13  I will find out and get back to you on this.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Well

         15  that would lead to wanting to do my two bills

         16  regarding the site safety coordinator and the

         17  licensing of the contractors.  While I can

         18  understand your reticence to license the

         19  corporations, you know, I appreciate that you feel

         20  the need to license the  --  at least the

         21  individual.  But what would ensure that the person

         22  stay on site during the construction process?   And

         23  that the people don't flip, where they just hire one

         24  person to do 17 jobs?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  We've actually
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          2  are looking quite closely at that.  And essentially,

          3  what we had for buildings that are over 15 stories,

          4  we have site safety managers who are hired by the

          5  contractors to be on the site at all times.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Buildings over

          7  how many stories?

          8                 MR. KRAMER: Fifteen stories.  We  --

          9  the proposal you have to essentially add a site

         10  safety coordinator or a construction superintendent

         11  of construction to demolition jobs, is certainly one

         12  that  --  the job being under the direct

         13  supervision, that they'd be legally responsible for

         14  compliance with all safety requirements.  And

         15  compliance with the Building Code, is one that we

         16  are in full agreement with.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And you

         18  talked about the code provisions a couple of times

         19  on this, and that the code provisions would be

         20  changing.  Especially when it goes towards the

         21  licensing the individuals for demolition

         22  contracting.  I hope that you don't mean that we're

         23  going to wait another year or two for the code to be

         24  initiated before we can work to move these

         25  particular bills.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: No.  Not at all.

          3  Actually, I was just referring to the penalties

          4  issue.  But we could certainly discuss penalties

          5  long before then, and we could adopt them in

          6  legislation before then.  The $10,000   --  you

          7  know, raising the fine to $10,000   --  I'm sorry

          8  that Council Member Avella isn't here, I did not

          9  mention the criminal court penalties, because that

         10  penalty is the existing code.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         12                 MR. KRAMER: And so, that provision is

         13  already in the existing code, where we can issue a

         14  criminal court summons to someone who violates the

         15  Building Code.  His bill really just raises the

         16  minimum penalty from $5,000 to $10,000.  And you

         17  know, that is certainly something that we're

         18  prepared to discuss.

         19                 And we certainly don't have to wait

         20  to the new code, the Model Code, to discuss that

         21  issue on raising that penalty, or any other penalty.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         23  Could you talk about the other technical problems

         24  that you had regarding 329 and 330?  You talked

         25  about the issue of  --  which I agree with, that a
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          2  person should have a minimum of five years of

          3  practical experience in demolition work.  But you --

          4                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  I think I

          5  mentioned that --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The idea of

          7  taking basic safety courses.

          8                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  Because we've

          9  found that the mere fact that someone is an

         10  architect, they may be a great design architect, but

         11    --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Or they may be an

         14  electrical engineer. And just because they have

         15  that, you know, those letters after their name,

         16  doesn't mean that they're really qualified to do

         17  this kind of work.  So we would like to see some

         18  practical experience requirement here, and also that

         19  they've taken certain  --  taken and passed certain

         20  types of courses.  OSHA has a series of courses on

         21  safety for workers, which we think are one

         22  guideline.  There are also other courses out there,

         23  that you know, we actually give tests for site

         24  safety managers.  Which may not be appropriate

         25  because the site safety manager is really geared
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          2  toward a high- rise building, and I just personally

          3  don't know whether or not that's the same test that

          4  we'd want to use for a demolition contractor.  But

          5  it may well be, because   --  or it part, maybe

          6  anyway.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          8                 MR. KRAMER: So I'd have to look into

          9  that type of issue.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So the

         11  Department wouldn't have to structure tests.  You

         12  could go to OSHA for them to structure courses that

         13  would be approved by the Department.

         14                 MR. KRAMER: We could accept OSHA

         15  courses.  I don't think we'd have much success in

         16  getting OSHA to change its tests. Change its courses

         17  just for us.  But we could  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They could add

         19  one maybe.

         20                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Does the

         22  Department do their own type of course on this type

         23  of thing?

         24                 MR. KRAMER: We give course and we

         25  also give tests and courses that are authorized by
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          2   --  that are given by private parties and private

          3  companies.  For example, the site safety manager is

          4  an example where there's a practical experience

          5  requirement class A written test that we give.  But

          6  we actually contract to a private company who gives

          7  it for us.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  So in

          9  your testimony, you're saying that the requirement

         10  for a coordinator is an idea worth exploring, but

         11  you're thinking of folding 329 in 330?  Is that what

         12  you're inferring?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: That's our instinct.  I

         14  mean, because they seem to be very close to related.

         15    And so you would have a registered demolition

         16  company, who would be performing the demolition, and

         17  the requirement would be that that company have, as

         18  an employee, and who is responsible on the job site,

         19  for the safety of the demolition work.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 MR. KRAMER: They seem to be very

         22  closely related. And we could separate the two, but

         23  they seem so closely related that it seemed to us

         24  that it would be better to handle them together.

         25  But if it turned out that 329 were an easier bill to
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          2  pass at this time, and the other one had issues that

          3  we haven't identified, we could do it that way.  And

          4  perhaps we could also do it in combination with the

          5  rules.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  I was

          7  thinking that -- the thought process from our end

          8  was that the site safety coordinators could probably

          9  do the lower- rise buildings, and have the expertise

         10  in that.  Because you know, as you know, there have

         11  been scaffolding accidents in three and four story

         12  buildings that have been erected or worked on the

         13  last year.  In fact, I think there was just a major

         14  accident a couple of months ago where a roof caved

         15  in.  I think that was a two- story building.

         16                 MR. KRAMER: No, I think you're

         17  absolutely right. And part of that is due to the

         18  fact that the larger jobs are safer, because they're

         19  using experienced union workers who you know, have

         20  advocates right there on the job site to make   --

         21  you know, who can stop the job if something is being

         22  done that's unsafe.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         24                 MR. KRAMER: It's the smaller jobs

         25  where we definitely are seeing more of the problems.
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          2    I mean, I think it's probably a lot of historical

          3  reasons as well, but I think the presence of unions,

          4  the presence of sight safety managers, the fact that

          5  these large buildings are worth a fortune and they

          6  have big insurance companies, and big finance

          7  companies watching over their shoulders is the

          8  reason that they actually have a better safety

          9  record than  --  it's a little bit counter

         10  intuitive.  And a small two- story building or a

         11  four- story building, where you see a lot of

         12  problems.  And people seem to think that they can

         13  just take out a wall, or take out a strut of a

         14  scaffold and not much is going to happen.  Whereas,

         15  in fact, it can lead to very, very serious

         16  consequences.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  And

         18  since my district is primarily low- rise buildings,

         19  I was concerned from that end. And also, Citywide,

         20  it seems that there have been many of those types of

         21  accidents from those low- rise buildings.  Which is

         22  why I was separating them both.  But I'll look

         23  forward to more talk about that.

         24                 Also, I just think that that once you

         25  look at it, I think structural demolition   --  I
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          2  mean interior demolition is just as important, and a

          3  lot of these places have structural because I think

          4  they collapse from both of those buildings that

          5  recall recently, were both because they did interior

          6  demolition that was turned out to be part of the

          7  structure, and they were not aware of it.  I think

          8  that --

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, we've seen that

         10  problem, where the people are taking out a so-

         11  called "non- load bearing, nonstructural wall" and

         12  it turns out, in fact, to be a very important

         13  component to the building.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you know, I

         15  think that the structural  --  to make sure that we

         16  have a site safety officers and people that are

         17  approved and regulated to be demolition contractors,

         18  I think are both important.  And I hope that we can

         19  get to language that would make both approved.

         20                 And since you have so many bills,

         21  I'll keep moving. And thank you Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Council

         23  Member Comrie. Council Member James.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Kramer, you

         25  mentioned the small buildings that we were having
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          2  problems throughout the City of New York.  The

          3  larger buildings were more unionized workers.  And I

          4  totally agree with you.  However, we also have some

          5  municipal buildings, where unfortunately, some of

          6  our agencies are using unskilled laborers, and

          7  nonunion members.  I'll give you an example.  The

          8  explosion in my district and the collapse of a roof

          9  at 84th Precinct and the Fire Department.  Which was

         10  a project being performed and conducted by the City

         11  of New York, unfortunately, using unskilled and

         12  ununion (sic) workers.  So it's not just limited to

         13  small buildings, it's also a problem within this

         14  Administration.

         15                 But let me talk to you a little bit

         16  about my observations.  I was scheduled to testify

         17  or give a presentation before a civic association.

         18  And I went on your BIS, your Business Information

         19  System.  And it was not very user friendly, and

         20  there were a lot symbols and codes that I really

         21  didn't understand.  And the Brooklyn office had to

         22  walk me through it.  And so, I was looking for a

         23  demolition permits, I was looking for any new

         24  applications, any new construction.  And it was

         25  very, very difficult to understand.  So I recognize
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          2  in your testimony you're making improvements to the

          3  BIS system, but it could not have helped me

          4  regarding the project across the street from my

          5  office, where they decided to demolish a building

          6  without any notification to elected officials and

          7  community boards.  And there was a cloud of smoke

          8  that just blinded me and some seniors.  And they did

          9  not have the proper containment.  They didn't have

         10  the safety mechanisms in place to I guess, control

         11  some of that.

         12                 So this really is a safety issue for

         13  me.  And I know that my bill and Council Member

         14  McMahon's bill is similar.  But the point of

         15  departure is Council Member McMahon focuses on

         16  buildings that are 75 years or older.  I focus on

         17  buildings 75 years or less. He puts the onus on

         18  applicants.  I put the onus on Department of

         19  Buildings.  I don't have a problem with combining

         20  the bills, but the question is how we can reconcile

         21  with the Department of Buildings to provide some

         22  sort of notification to the respective elected

         23  official and the appropriate community board.

         24                 MR. KRAMER: Well I think that the

         25  discussion that took place a little bit earlier
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          2  concerning somehow the use of  -- through the

          3  assistance perhaps of DoITT and a push to perhaps

          4  use an electronic system so that for example,  --  I

          5  mean, unfortunately, there's not a perfect

          6  correlation between election districts and community

          7  boards.  But to at least to community districts,

          8  which are keyed into our system.  And if we could

          9  develop a  --  I certainly would be willing to  --

         10  more than eager to explore the idea of sending out

         11   --  of seeing if we could develop a system of

         12  taking the information  --  which I tried to explain

         13  in my testimony  --  is available on BIS, but to the

         14  sophisticated user.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I not being

         16  one.

         17                 MR. KRAMER: To somehow cull that and

         18  push it out to the community boards, might go a long

         19  way to doing that.  I'm just not  --  I'd have to

         20  work with our IT people and tell you what's a

         21  realistic schedule to do that.

         22                 I know that some of the  --  there

         23  are some district managers who seem to use BIS you

         24  know, better than anybody in the Department.  But I

         25  think we have, in our Governmental Affairs unit,
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          2  under  Marietta Comidis (phonetic) a staff that can

          3  certainly  -- we should at the outset, go out and

          4  work with you and your staff, and the community

          5  boards, to make sure that  --  at least before,

          6  we're able to get there, and we can explain that a

          7  DM on our system means demolition, or that an A3

          8  means a stop work order.  You didn't know.  These

          9  are  --  I mean, I didn't know that until recently,

         10  and that's why we actually are changing to put a red

         11  banner up on a stop work order, which will be on our

         12  system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Or PW- 1 or PW-

         14  2.  I didn't know what they meant.  And I think it

         15  was Ken Lazarre who had to walk me through all of

         16  these codes, and I thank him for that.  And symbols.

         17                 But it's really so that the community

         18  and elected officials and the community board, we

         19  can serve as the eyes and ears for the Department of

         20  Buildings.

         21                 Again, that particular project across

         22  the street from my office did not have the proper

         23  sealing to contain a lot of that debris, and we

         24  could have alerted the Department of Buildings to

         25  let them know, hey, they're about to knock this
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          2  building down, but I don't see anything in

          3  scaffolding or anything up.  And it would have

          4  prevented again, me from being blinded, and the

          5  seniors who were walking to my office during that

          6  project, during that demolition project.

          7                 And my last issue is, the bill is not

          8  before you, but there was an incident, I guess you

          9  can recall, on Park Avenue, where there was a multi-

         10  use building.  An applicant had applied for a

         11  demolition.  Did not follow up.  The building

         12  collapsed, resulting in the death of someone who was

         13  going into the store.  -

         14                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.  I do remember.

         15  That's down in --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Exactly.  125

         17  Park.

         18                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, I remember.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And so I want

         20  to   --  would like to work with your office to see

         21  how we can prevent that from happening in the

         22  future.

         23                 And I think that's the last of my

         24  comments.  Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you very
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          2  much Council Member James.  We'll hear next from

          3  Council Member Mendez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Good

          5  afternoon.  In your testimony, you say how many

          6  permits are issued for alterations and for

          7  demolitions.  But you don't say how many

          8  applications you receive in a given year.  What is

          9  that number?

         10                 MR. KRAMER: Okay.  There is a

         11  distinction between an application and a demolition.

         12    Because sometimes, effectively, there's two

         13  reasons why there would be a distinction in any time

         14  period.  One is the application simply might be

         15  abandoned.  Someone might have the idea and file an

         16  initial application.  And decide that their

         17  financing just doesn't pay, or what have you.  And

         18  secondly, the time periods are not going to be

         19  perfectly coincident.  So you might file an

         20  application in August, but not get your permit until

         21  September or October.  So they're not going to be

         22  precise and the same.

         23                 But I happen to have figures with me

         24  for fiscal year '05.  Which is the latest available.

         25    And for example, we issued, in that year, there
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          2  were 69,373 applications filed with the Department.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: 69,000?

          4                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.  Applications filed

          5  with the Department.  That's for ones, twos, and

          6  threes.  And new buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And that's

          8  fiscal year?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: That's '05.  And 81,194

         10  permits.  So in that particular time period, there

         11  were more permits issued than applications.  But in

         12  any given month, it could be a reverse, I would

         13  think.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And those

         15  applications would be for demolition or alteration

         16  permits, is that right?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: It would be  --  we take

         18  out the alteration three, because those are

         19  generally small things like scaffolds, which

         20  generally would not involve any demolition

         21  whatsoever.   But in alt one and alt two, generally

         22  it would involve some demolition.  I mean, maybe

         23  just interior walls.  I mean, it's possible they

         24  don't, but the vast majority of them would.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I may have
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          2  another question later, --  okay.

          3                 MR. KRAMER: Council Member, in

          4  addition, there are about 3,500 demolition

          5  applications were filed that year.  That would be

          6  for demolitions for entire buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thirty- five

          8  hundred?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

         10                 And just to  --  and just by

         11  contrast, for example, it's an interesting

         12  comparison.  That same year, there were 6,600 new

         13  building permits.  So you can see there is still

         14  vacant land in the City.  So that 3,500 demolitions

         15  of entire buildings, but 6,600 new buildings.

         16  That's because, in Staten Island and Queens for

         17  example, you might have some tract housing being

         18  built.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And do you

         20  look at what other demolition or construction is

         21  going on?  Like on my block, last year, there were

         22  seven construction sites, seven different block and

         23  lots.  Five right on my block.  And one just north

         24  of me.  Like 20 feet north of me, and one 20 feet

         25  south of me.  Which was not pleasant.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: I'm sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Does any

          4  thought go into that?  Or is there any tracking of

          5  other permits that are given out for construction

          6  and demolition?

          7                 MR. KRAMER: Well, we don't do it in

          8  that way.  I mean, under the Building Code, and

          9  under New York State law, if someone comes in and

         10  files a building application with us, or an

         11  application for a building permit, it's a non-

         12  discretionary act, if they meet the zoning and

         13  Building Code requirements.  So there can be a great

         14  deal of cluster developments.  My neighborhood too,

         15  has an extraordinary amount of construction, and I

         16  know that in Gale Brewer's district, you know, it's

         17  extraordinary to see what's happening.  And you

         18  know, it's just you know  --  what's happened in the

         19  City over the you know, is obviously, there's a

         20  construction boom going on, and so there's no  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And

         22  apparently, it's all in my district.

         23                 MR. KRAMER: We all feel that way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: No.  They

         25  verified that the most permits are in my district.
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          2  But we can have a contest.  I'm fine with that.

          3                 Let me ask you something about stop

          4  work orders. Because recently, a stop work order

          5  just failed appeal, but the owner went and applied

          6  for an alteration to his permit to do some other

          7  work.  That was issued while the appeal was being

          8  reviewed. Is there any way for the Department of

          9  track any of those   --  you know, when there was a

         10  stop work order issued, it's now being appealed, and

         11  there's more new work being submitted.  Is there any

         12  way of tracking that?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: I think that we would be

         14  tracking that on BIS, is that for example, in a

         15  large building, you could have say an application

         16   --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: A large

         18  building is defined as?

         19                 MR. KRAMER: No, I'm just being

         20  colloquial, that you can have an application that's

         21  turned down, for let's say, a major renovation of

         22  the building.  But meanwhile, they want to put a

         23  restaurant in the ground floor.  So that would be

         24  allowed for.  But it is tracked on BIS.  And that

         25  you know, it is certainly a visible thing.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And when you

          3  say large building, you're talking what?  How many

          4  floors?  How many units?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: No, I'm just saying,

          6  let's say a six story building.  Just for example.

          7  Or this building.  You could easily have an

          8  application pending to convert it to residential.

          9  This could be turned down, and yet, have valid work

         10  going on the ground floor for various storefront

         11  work.  Is that what you mean?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well, I'll  --

         13    it gets too complicated.  But it just seemed like

         14  there was a stop work order issued, and it was being

         15  reviewed by your Department.  Meanwhile, he's filing

         16  other applications to do different things in that

         17  same building.  It just doesn't seem like something

         18  is working there.

         19                 Thank you.  I have no further

         20  questions Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Council

         22  Member Mendez. And I'm just going to wrap up with

         23  two brief questions.  First, I wanted to focus on

         24  Intro. No. Three for a brief moment.  And I look at

         25  your testimony, and it appears that from your
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          2  position, you like the intent of the bill.  You say

          3  it would codify the current process, and I think you

          4  mentioned briefly in your opening, but could you

          5  just explain what the current process is?  And then

          6  maybe where some of the pitfalls in the current

          7  process are?  And some of it may be on the side of

          8  the Police Department, and how we, in your opinion,

          9  we can shore that process up.

         10                 MR. KRAMER: Well, see, when we now

         11  issue a stop work order, due to let's say  --  well,

         12  really for any reason, but most commonly for either

         13  work that's not in compliance with plans, or for

         14  work without a permit, and we'll issue a stop work

         15  order at the site.  And we post it at the site, and

         16  we will take it and go back to the office and the

         17  inspectors enters it.  And a copy of the stop work

         18  order, of every stop work order, is faxed to the

         19  local precinct.

         20                 Now, you know, of course, I'm sure

         21  there are instances when contractors ignore them.

         22  And we will go out again. And if the inspector felt

         23  that you know, he needed the assistance of the local

         24  precinct, that there was flaunting of the law, he

         25  could request it.  And I don't actually know of any
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          2  instances when a request has been turned down.  I

          3  think you know, that  --  I'm not really sure of the

          4  specific problem that Council Member Avella was   --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  So just in

          6  general, when you notify the Police Department, it

          7  goes directly to the local precinct, and not, say,

          8  to One Police Plaza.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: That's correct?

         11  Okay.  And then --  I guess, how often do you find

         12  that either there's some level of cooperation with

         13  the Police Department?  Is this something that the

         14  Police basically say they have other more pressing

         15  things, police matters to deal with?  Are they  --

         16  does it vary from precinct to precinct?  What's  --

         17  you know, I know it's tough for you, because you're

         18  not the Police Department.  But just from your end,

         19  what's the experience that you have, in terms of

         20  them complying with   --

         21                 MR. KRAMER: I'm going to turn to my

         22  General Counsel, Phyllis Arnold.

         23                 MS. ARNOLD: Only because I've had any

         24  number of conversations with NYPD over the years.

         25  Our experience is that NYPD is generally quite
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          2  cooperative.  I think there's  --  one of the

          3  points, I think we've learned over the years is that

          4  they need us there.  They can't reasonably   --

          5  police officers have a very hard time on their own

          6  enforcing our stop work orders. Justifiably.  It's

          7  not often self evident on the face of the order, if

          8  somebody has exceeded the scope of the permit which

          9  scope? What work is permitted?  What work has our

         10  Borough Commissioner authorized  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: So, just in

         12  general, the police officer wouldn't have the

         13  technical expertise  --

         14                 MS. ARNOLD: That's right.  What they

         15  do do, I think, regularly  --  and again, this does

         16  vary precinct by precinct, but Mr. Kramer is

         17  correct, I've never had a no from the police.  They

         18  will support us.  And when we call them, and we know

         19  we have a site where workers are working in

         20  violation of a stop work order, we know we've

         21  notified the right people, they will go out with us

         22  and help keep the peace.  And help us, you know,

         23  give some legitimacy to the Buildings Department

         24  inspector, who is going out.  And if necessary, will

         25  become the complainant in effect, being an arrest
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          2  for violation of the stop work.  Those instances are

          3  few and far between.  Most of the times, when we

          4  show up with the police with us, people will scatter

          5  and they'll stop.  And that technically, is

          6  compliance with the stop work, and that's the end of

          7  what we can do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.  And

          9  then my final question has to do with both Intros.

         10  30- A and 338.  You stated in your testimony that if

         11  you had reliable information on the age of

         12  buildings, that would be available from other

         13  agencies or websites. I believe, and I want to ask,

         14  I believe the Department of Finance does have these

         15  records.  I know when I've looked up some tax

         16  information for constituents in my district, in the

         17  few instances that I have looked, the Department of

         18  Finances does have the age of some buildings.  We've

         19  found some buildings in my district, where the age

         20  was over 100 years old.

         21                 But just from a broader sense, just

         22  from your experience, do you know if the Department

         23  of Finance has these records reliably, Citywide on

         24  every building?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Actually, I'm just not
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          2  competent to testify on that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Could you say that

          4  again?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: I just don't know the

          6  answer to your question.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  Well, I

          8  think you could, just for your information, check

          9  with the Department of Finance on their website.

         10  They do have you know, information in general on the

         11  age of every building there.

         12                 I'd like to thank you  --  We've been

         13  joined by Council Member Lou Fidler.  And by Council

         14  Member Thomas White. And I believe that Council

         15  Member Fidler got my attention just before I let you

         16  go, so I'll allow him to get his question in.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, and

         18  I apologize, if it was covered earlier, please tell

         19  me, and I'll shut up and find out the answer.  I'm

         20  referring to Intro. 265, which intends to change the

         21  definitions of demolition versus alteration.

         22  Something that most of us think is pretty arcane,

         23  but in my part of the world, might well have

         24  unintended consequences.  The special permits, which

         25  are permitted by City Planning in a few community
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          2  boards, Community Board 15 being one of them, are

          3  not permitted for a property that is demolished.

          4  You're shaking your head no?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: No.  I'm nodding  --  not

          6  at all.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.  And so,

          8  my question to you is, is would Intro. 265 have an

          9  impact on what properties might be permitted special

         10  permits or not?

         11                 MR. KRAMER: I don't believe so.  The

         12  definitions that are in the Building Code for

         13  Building Code purposes, generally do not govern the

         14  determination of what's permissible under zoning.

         15  They're generally separate definitions.  For

         16  example, the definition of an alteration under the

         17  zoning resolution is completely different than the

         18  definition that we use at Department of Buildings.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And you would

         20  be comfortable in your testimony that we don't need

         21  to  --  if we were to pass this legislation, do

         22  anything to make sure that that's absolutely clear?

         23                 MR. KRAMER: I would certainly check

         24  with Counsel for the Department of City Planning.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.  I'd like to

          3  thank you for coming down and giving testimony.  And

          4  I would imagine that Committee staff and myself will

          5  be in communication in terms of you know, some of

          6  the bills we agree on that need some minor

          7  modifications.  So I encourage you to contact her

          8  and we'll work along with the bill sponsors to

          9  include any of the changes we can agree on.

         10                 The next person to give testimony

         11  will be Mr. Michael McGuire, from the Mason Tenders

         12  District Council.  Then he'll be followed by I

         13  believe Mr. Simeon Bankoff, from the Historic

         14  District Council.  If he's still here.  Followed by

         15  Mr. Robert Altman.

         16                 And just give us moment to settle

         17  down, and then you can get right into it.

         18                 MR. MCGUIRE: Good afternoon Chairman

         19  Dilan.  My name is Mike McGuire.  I represent the

         20  Mason Tenders District Council of Greater New York

         21  and Long Island.  We represent some 15,000 members

         22  of the Labors' International Union.  And in my

         23  position as the Political Director there, I am the

         24  sole representative of unionized demolition workers

         25  throughout New York City.
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          2                 Some of the pieces of legislation we

          3  are here to consider have history that stretches

          4  back almost a decade.  I first testified on these

          5  demolition issues before Archie Spigner, who ended

          6  his Chair of this Committee more than six years ago.

          7    At that time, I cited a front- page article

          8  published in the New York Daily News that outlined

          9  the dangers of working in the demolition industry.

         10  Tom Robbins reported that 12 workers were killed in

         11  demolition accidents in New York City between 1994

         12  and 1999, making demolition the single most

         13  dangerous construction trade.  Construction

         14  continues to be among the deadliest, if not the most

         15  deadly industry in New York City.  The United States

         16  Department of Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistic

         17  records show that in the two- year period between

         18  January of 2003 and 2004, the latest period for

         19  which data is available, there were no less than 51

         20  fatal construction accidents in New York City.  And

         21  demolition continues to be the deadliest of the

         22  construction trades.  Last week, when I searched the

         23  New York Daily News archives for the combined search

         24  terms of "killed" and "demolition", the search

         25  engine returned 65 references between October 1997
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          2  and the present. That is not to state there were 65

          3  fatal accidents from demolition, because there's

          4  often multiple articles on the sane accident.  But

          5  it does remain the most dangerous of the

          6  construction trades.

          7                 The demolition industry is in

          8  desperate need of oversight, and several of these

          9  bills will definitely help in that respect.  Some

         10  other bills being heard today are really not

         11  demolition bills, but may be termed as demolition-

         12  related.  I applaud the intent of Intro. Three.

         13  However, some of the language is flawed.

         14  Specifically, the phrase, "Any person or persons who

         15  engage in illegal demolition work shall be punished

         16  as provided in Section 26- 248 of this chapter...".

         17  Which is the last sentence of the new Section 26-

         18  123.1.  This clause, as written, could blame workers

         19  for the wrongdoing of contractors.  I worked on

         20  dozens of demolition jobs during my 16 years in the

         21  field as a laborer, and I can state with no

         22  uncertainty, that there is no way the workers will

         23  know whether the proper permits have been pulled for

         24  the job. This language should be amended to read

         25  that the persons of a supervisory nature, as well as
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          2  company principals, will be held accountable.

          3                 Additionally, the penalty section of

          4  Intro. Three is lacking.  The bill states, "any

          5  person who is convicted of conducting demolition

          6  work without a permit...shall be guilty of a

          7  misdemeanor, and ...shall be punishable by a fine

          8  not to exceed $5,000, or by imprisonment not to

          9  exceed six months, or both.

         10                 The rotunda of City Hall, as well as

         11  the halls of the Legislative Office Building in

         12  Albany, and the Capitol in Washington, are

         13  figuratively littered with good laws that are

         14  nothing more than toothless tigers.  Plainly said,

         15  we have a lot of good laws on the books, but very

         16  little enforcement, and penalties so small that they

         17  do not act as a deterrent in any meaningful way.

         18  This section should be amended to read for the

         19  fines, "punishable by a fine of not less than

         20  $5,000", and for the jail time, make it a class A

         21  misdemeanor, thus reading, "and by imprisonment not

         22  to exceed one year:.

         23                 As for Intro. 30- A, I worry about

         24  the effect such a law would have.  Many members of

         25  this Committee know me, and know that I do not come
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          2  before the City Council to advocate for development

          3  for development's sake.  For instance, I was the

          4  only representative from the building trades that

          5  testified in opposition of the Fourth Avenue

          6  rezoning, solely because there was no affordable

          7  housing component.  I serve on my community board,

          8  CB6 in Manhattan, and, as near as I can tell, I am

          9  the only pro development member of the 50 who sit on

         10  the board.  Whatever the actual intent, the reality

         11  is that Intro. 30- A's notification requirement will

         12  become a major roadblock to development in our City.

         13    I am not talking about just large- scale high-

         14  rise projects. Virtually every project for which a

         15  permit application is submitted, will be challenged

         16  in some way or another.

         17                 This is a city where the process to

         18  do any kind of development is so onerous that it has

         19  spawned a profession known as an expeditor.

         20  Expediters are people who builders, both large and

         21  small, have to employ to guide their projects

         22  through the labyrinth of City agencies that need to

         23  sign off before a project gets final approval.

         24  Intro. 30- A not only adds a couple of more steps to

         25  the process, but acts as an early warning system for
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          2  the NIMBYists in our City, who would be quite happy

          3  if everything in New York was the same as it was

          4  during the Great Depression.

          5                 Intro. 132 is very much the same as

          6  Intro. Three, although I do find it interesting that

          7  the penalties for doing demolition work without a

          8  permit on one- and two- family homes under Intro.

          9  132 are more stringent than doing demolition work

         10  without a permit on a high- rise under Intro. Three.

         11                 Intro. 132 contains clauses that

         12  allow for a course of civil action as well as denial

         13  of permits to those found to be in violation.  These

         14  last two penalty standards should be applied to

         15  Intro. Three as well.

         16                 Another problem with Intro. 132 is

         17  the same as my first complaint with Intro. Three.

         18  As written, the bill seems to hold workers

         19  accountable, when in fact, it should be supervisory

         20  personnel and principals.

         21                 On Intro. 265, we agree with the need

         22  to codify definitions of demolition and alteration.

         23  Further, in the real world application that our

         24  members and contractors see on a daily basis, the

         25  criteria for defining demolition and alteration as
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          2  set forth in the bill seems very close to hitting

          3  the mark exactly.

          4                 As for Intro. 329, we believe this

          5  legislation will go further to ensure the safety of

          6  both workers and the general public than any bill

          7  being discussed here today.  It is our belief,

          8  unequivocally, that requiring a licensed

          9  construction site safety coordinator, or, as

         10  specified in the bill, a demolition site safety

         11  coordinator, on all total demolition sites will save

         12  lives.  The only suggestion that we would make

         13  regarding Intro. 329 is that the site safety

         14  coordinator be held to a very strict standard in

         15  performance to his or her duties.

         16                 The total demolition business is the

         17  wild, wild west of the construction industry.

         18  Flaunting of safety regulations, abuse of workers,

         19  ties to organized crime, and general unsound

         20  business practices are par for the course in the

         21  total demolition industry.  We have no reason to

         22  believe that a site safety coordinator in the employ

         23  of one of these companies would actually do the job

         24  he or she is charged to do.  The leverage exists in

         25  the fact that becoming a licensed construction site
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          2  coordinator is no easy task.  Classes are extensive,

          3  and tests are administered by the City is difficult

          4  to pass for persons not properly trained or

          5  qualified.

          6                 We hope the licensing standards for

          7  demolition site safety coordinator will be equally

          8  as stringent as those of the construction site

          9  safety coordinator.  Suspension or termination of a

         10  site safety coordinator's license for failure to

         11  complete his or her duties should be a component of

         12  this law.  Stiff monetary fines, high enough to be a

         13  real deterrent, should be levied against both the

         14  contractor and the individual licensed as the site

         15  safety coordinator in cases of willful or repeat

         16  violations.

         17                 Generally speaking, the Mason Tenders

         18  District Council supports Intro. 330, with a few

         19  reservations.  Licensing is often proposed as a fix

         20  for contracting problems, but unless done right, can

         21  actually make things worse.  When a licensing

         22  requirement is established, enforcement tends to

         23  concentrate on these licensed contractors.  This

         24  encourages the establishment of a non- licensed

         25  contractor market in which contractors fly under the
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          2  radar screen of City regulators, those exacerbating

          3  the problem the law was meant to solve.

          4                 Further, the allowance of a person

          5  with seven years practical experience to become a

          6  licensed demolition contractor is fraught with

          7  danger.  As many members of the City Council saw

          8  during the hearings on Rapid Demolitions' contract

          9  to demolish the old Sanitation Department garage on

         10  West 57th Street, experience does not make for a

         11  safe job site.  The supervisor there had decades of

         12  experience, yet the work practices were among the

         13  worst I've ever seen.

         14                 Additionally, I would be concerned

         15  about a rouge demolition contractor having persons

         16  in their employ licensed as demolition contractors,

         17  allowing them to take the fall when things go bad,

         18  while the contractor goes on his way to do the same

         19  thing at multiple other job sites.

         20                 As for Intro. 338, it's duplicative

         21  of Intro. 30- A, and I've already stated my

         22  reservations to that bill.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         24  Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I thank you
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          2  for your support of 329, and your suggestions that

          3  the licensing standards be stringent.  And I want to

          4  thank you for tepidly supporting 338. And could you

          5  explain what do you mean by the  --  when you say

          6  the non- licensed contractor market?  Do you think

          7  that this would allow that to exacerbate?  Or do you

          8  think that it would just create a more clearer

          9  playing field, where you'd be able to identify them

         10  quicker?

         11                 MR. MCGUIRE: Well, I think they would

         12  actually create licensed demolition.  We don't

         13  technically get licensed demolition contractors now.

         14    And I actually worked on this legislation way back

         15  when, and when you first became a Council Member,

         16  you introduced it, reintroduced it.  And I greatly

         17  appreciate it.

         18                 I think that what happens is when you

         19  create a license structure, supervision of the

         20  industry then kind of goes onto that licensed

         21  structure, because they're easier to track.  And the

         22  unlicensed contractors kind of you know, fall off

         23  the radar screen, and it's very hard for the DOB or

         24  who else is doing the licensing to track them.

         25                 I should probably clarify.  I'm all
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          2  in favor of licensing demolition contractors.  I

          3  just would like to make sure that the Department of

          4  Buildings has some sort of a mechanism in place to

          5  go after the unlicensed contractors, as well as the

          6  licensed contractors.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  But I

          8  think the posting of a sign that somewhere saying

          9  that they have the proper permits and licenses, all

         10  categories, on the building, would make it easier

         11  for a complaint to be driven, if there was and

         12  edifice being constructed without a demolition

         13  contractor sign and along the permits that are

         14  posted.  You know, that the buildings have those  --

         15    you're supposed to have the permits posted at eye

         16  level now, for all of the applicable permits that

         17  could be posted also. And hopefully, make it easier

         18  to track and make sure that the unlicensed market

         19  does not flourish.

         20                 MR. MCGUIRE: I agree.  I mean, I

         21  think that a requirement along the lines you see now

         22  on sidewalk sheds and construction sites, the big

         23  signs that say, you know, give the number of the

         24  BEST squad.  And also the name of the contractor.

         25  If it's a demolition site, the name of the
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          2  demolition contractor should be up there.  And then,

          3  you know, the general public, or whoever else, could

          4  just go on the BIS, and look up and see if this is a

          5  licensed demolition contractor or not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  What's

          7  your experience with the BEST squad?  Once they  --

          8  Mr. Kramer seemed to indicate that they go out and

          9  do pre- inspection, and pre- safety inspections.

         10  Do you feel that they go back on their own?  Or do

         11  they have to be pulled back kicking and screaming to

         12  the site after they do the initial safety

         13  inspection?

         14                 MR. MCGUIRE: I don't know if they go

         15  back on their own.  As far as being pulled back

         16  kicking and screaming, they can be pulled back

         17  fairly easily.  Our organizers do it all the time,

         18  if they're working a job site, picketing a

         19  particular job site. They're across the street, you

         20  know, they're over there with the blow- up rat, and

         21  they're looking at the site, and they can see from

         22  the street, any number of violations.  And they call

         23  the BEST squad.  And the BEST squad is pretty

         24  responsive.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They are
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          2  responsive?

          3                 MR. MCGUIRE: As far as them being

          4  proactive, I mean, that's reactive.  As far as them

          5  being proactive, and going out on their own, I don't

          6  know, really, if they do or not.  You know,

          7  generally speaking, most of the City agencies are

          8  stretched to their capacity, so I would think if

          9  they do, they certainly could do more.  It would be

         10  better if they could do more.  They might not be

         11  able to be equipped to do more.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And

         13  what did you think about OSHA teaching the courses,

         14  as opposed to the Buildings Department?

         15                 MR. MCGUIRE: Well, I mean, OSHA  --

         16  I don't know if OSHA actually teaches the courses.

         17  There is an OSHA ten- hour site safety class that we

         18  require all of our shop stewards to go through.  And

         19  we have legislation pending in Albany, and it's been

         20  pending in Albany for the last seven years, I

         21  believe, to require OSHA site safety training for

         22  workers.  It's a ten- hour class.  A lot of our

         23  members go through it, not just the shop stewards.

         24  I think it would be that course, and several others

         25  would be rather good for these demolition site
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          2  safety managers to take.  Things like confined space

          3  entry, and again, the site safety  --  any number of

          4  safety classes that are given.  And a lot of them

          5  are the confined space entry, which is going into an

          6  area, it might be a well, or a tank, or something

          7  like that.  There could be gas below the surface.

          8  It could be a very dangerous situation.  And that

          9  certainly applies in demolition, because a lot of

         10  times, when you're doing demolition, you're taking

         11  out a whole building, there's  oil tanks and so

         12  forth underneath.  That's a three- hour course.  It

         13  would not be onerous for somebody who is seeking a

         14  demolition site safety coordinator's license to take

         15  those kind of classes.  And I daresay, at least in

         16  the unionized side, I believe that the union

         17  contractors to have people, it would be entitled to

         18  take them at our training fund, where there are

         19  already offered.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But you also

         21  said earlier, you have confidence that the Buildings

         22  Department could structure the proper classes also?

         23                 MR. MCGUIRE: I think so, yes.

         24  Whether or not the Buildings Department  --  I mean,

         25  the classes just need to be made available.  I know
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          2  the Department of Buildings has to do with the

          3  various trade schools.  Once you require something,

          4  the various trade schools around the City will put

          5  the various courses on their curriculum, as long as

          6  there's a market for them to give this kind of a

          7  training.

          8                 So as long as we give enough lead

          9  time and you know, the ten- hour OSHA is probably

         10  the more stringent of the classes, if you gave six-

         11  month lead time for this demolition site safety

         12  coordinator training, I think most of the training

         13  schools,   -- the union training fund is already

         14  giving these classes, and then most of the private

         15  trade schools would probably have more than enough

         16  time to set up that curriculum.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. So

         18  you're suggesting a ten- month lead time once the

         19  bill is passed to get everybody up and running.

         20                 MR. MCGUIRE: Well, I mean, I think

         21  six would be sufficient, but you know, I mean, this

         22  thing is, you know, it's good for the industry.

         23  We're going to get some pushhack on it from

         24  contractors.  I think if we give a little leeway on

         25  that to move the thing forward, it's well worth it.
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          2  But I think you could do it in six.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  Okay.

          4  All right. Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          5                  CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.  Do

          6  any of the members of the Committee have a question?

          7  Council Member Brewer.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The question

          9  is, regarding 265, thanks for your input.  And I

         10  hope that you would work with us on the wording.

         11  Because I just think it needs a little tweaking.   MR

         12  . MCGUIRE: Absolutely.  Actually, DOB made a very

         13  good point in saying 25 percent, instead of 30, just

         14  because visually, it will be much easier for their

         15  inspectors to determine if 25 percent is  --  I

         16  mean, it does the bill slightly more stringent, so I

         17  don't think that's a problem.  Any help you need

         18  with it, just feel free to call.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Any other

         22  questions?  If not, Mr. McGuire, we want to thank

         23  you for your testimony.  And we sure appreciate your

         24  views on all the items today.

         25                 The next person to testify is Mr.
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          2  Simeon Bankoff. Is he here?  If not, Mr. Robert

          3  Altman.

          4                 Do you have any prepared testimony?

          5  Or are you just going to  --

          6                 MR. ALTMAN: No, I don't.  For the

          7  main reason that my testimony has not been approved

          8  by either Board of Directors of the Queens Bronx

          9  Building Association.  I always do that caveat.

         10                 I'm not really here in opposition or

         11  in support of any of the bills, I just have a few

         12  comments, just from the general thoughts of the

         13  members over the years.  And just from my own

         14  personal experience, with representing a diverse

         15  group of clients, especially manufacturers as well.

         16                 I do have some concerns on Intro.

         17  Three, in the respect that when you  --  often,

         18  there are manufacturers who are relocating and such.

         19    And whenever they have a tenant buildout, there is

         20  inevitably a lot of construction that gets done,

         21  some of which is demolition.  I would venture to say

         22  that 90 percent of the time a permit is not

         23  obtained.  I don't know if the Council wishes to

         24  criminalize the actions of small manufacturers.

         25                 That much said, I do believe that
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          2  there was another bill which did focus in on one-

          3  and two- family homes for demolition permits and

          4  penalties.  And with respect that that does, in

          5  fact, narrow the field, I think it's probably a

          6  better bill.   I would be careful on that as well.

          7  Only because that in one- and two- family homes,

          8  sometimes you have to these do- it- yourself home

          9  workers who like to fix their place up.  And even

         10  there, technically, they might have a demolition

         11  permit requirement that they're not adhering to, and

         12  they don't know.  And in that respect, I don't think

         13  you'd want to prohibit them from correcting the

         14  error, and going to get another permit.

         15                 With respect to the notification

         16  bills, I would only say this.  The two associations

         17  that I do represent, have met with the Department of

         18  Buildings on this issue.  I would day, from the Fall

         19  of last year to early this year, and there was

         20  something that DOB was going to institute in this

         21  area, which would have given notification.  Our

         22  associations have reached our peace with the

         23  Department of Buildings on that notification

         24  provision for demolition.  I don't necessarily know

         25  why it has not, in fact, been published and
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          2  implemented.  Maybe there's a desire to work with

          3  the Council to see something like that pass the

          4  Council.  If what the DOB and our industry, as I

          5  said, it wasn't something that we are sitting here

          6  saying, "Oh yes, we'd love it", but it was something

          7  where we reached our peace.  If the Council passed

          8  something that we reached with respect to the

          9  Department of Buildings, you would probably not see

         10  us coming in and testifying in opposition to the

         11  bills.

         12                 I think the Council would find it,

         13  giving sufficient notice, there wouldn't be these

         14  things, where I heard from the testimony, and some

         15  of the Council Member's questions that the BIS

         16  system not getting enough, that was the notification

         17  in this matter.  I think what was there would have

         18  been sufficient notification.  Would have pleased

         19  the members.

         20                 But that's for you and the I think

         21  the Department of Buildings to take a look at, see

         22  if it meets your requirements and such.

         23                 With respect to licensing, I think

         24  the only thing that is of issue for our associations

         25  on licensing, and it is a concern with licensing in
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          2  general, is that over the years, we have seen

          3  various elected officials approach our members on

          4  not let's say, cordial terms.  And have made certain

          5  statements to them which can only be termed at

          6  times, threatening, even though they are doing work

          7  that is entirely legal, that is entirely within the

          8  scope of zoning, and scope of what the is legal with

          9  respect to the Building Code.  And there is always a

         10  concern about being caught up in a political fray.

         11  And this has happened with various permits at times,

         12  but then the permits eventually get restored.  To

         13  have their license revoked, that is a concern of our

         14  point.

         15                 Usually the way a license gets

         16  revoked is if the agency determines that it's worthy

         17  of revocation.  And then, the only appeal is through

         18  an Article 78 proceeding, and that determines if the

         19  agency is arbitrary and capricious.  Which is an

         20  extremely high standard.  Generally speaking, if

         21  there are going to be any licensing in this bill, we

         22  would, in fact, want judicial review at the license

         23  being revoked in the first instance.  So that it is

         24  not something that is subject to   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Sergeant could you
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          2  close the door now, so we eliminate some of the

          3  outside noise?

          4                 MR. ALTMAN: I would note that with

          5  respect to licensing, and the two associations that

          6  I represent, one has been on record, the Building

          7  Industry Association of New York City, as supporting

          8  some form of licensing for the purposes of

          9  professionalizing the home building industry.  The

         10  other has generally taken the standard approach of

         11  being opposed for that reason, the concern, that

         12  they, in fact, are worried about being caught up in

         13  a political quandary, where even though they're

         14  doing everything right, the concern is the fact that

         15  they lose their license for doing nothing wrong.

         16  Other than the fact that the local elected official

         17  is not happy with the project that is being legally

         18  done.

         19                 And I would say that I have seen that

         20  personally, where  --  I'm not saying any of the

         21  members here present, but I have seen certain

         22  Council Members also even discussed certain things

         23  with members which I think were inappropriate.  So

         24  it's just their concern.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Mr.
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          2  Altman.  You raise some interesting points.  And I

          3  think the Committee definitely will take them into

          4  consideration.  But I just want to ask if you could

          5  just explain the process on the small manufacturers

          6  for me, one more time.  Because I didn't get  --  I

          7  got the objection for the one- and two- family home

          8  owners without the permits.  That to me is pretty

          9  easy to understand.  But the manufacturers, could

         10  you just restate that for me?

         11                 MR. ALTMAN: The manufacturers  --

         12  what happens often, is you'll see a lot of

         13  relocating businesses from Manhattan have to do

         14  buildouts at their new location.  It may involve

         15  some interior demolition work.  I would tell you

         16  that, as I said, I probably guess that 90 percent of

         17  that work gets done without a permit.  There's a lot

         18  of work that you may not think requires a permit

         19  that does in fact require a permit.  I'll give a

         20  simple example.   --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: So just to

         22  interrupt you, you say 90 percent of that work gets

         23  done without a permit?

         24                 MR. ALTMAN: I would say that about 90

         25  percent of the work you see on some interior tenant
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          2  buildouts gets done without a permit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: But they should

          4  require a permit.

          5                 MR. ALTMAN: Theoretically, there's a

          6  requirement to do a permit.  I will tell you that

          7  sometimes, with the Buildings Department being so

          8  slow sometimes in getting permits approved, if you

          9  have that situation occur, you would probably drive

         10  these poor manufacturers out of business.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We'll have to take

         12  that into consideration.  Council Member Comrie.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What do you

         14  mean by manufacturers?  I'm confused.

         15                 MR. ALTMAN: Apparel makers, tool

         16  makers, a lot of -  the printing industry has done a

         17  lot of relocation over the years, from Manhattan to

         18  the boroughs.  So whenever a manufacturer moves into

         19  new space, there may be some  --  they have to build

         20  out the space.  It may be someone who was there

         21  previously, and you have to knock down partition

         22  walls.  And things such as that.  It may even be,

         23  require  --  as I said, I'll give you an example of

         24  things you wouldn't necessarily think needs a

         25  permit, but in fact does.  If you move your light
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          2  switch from that wall to that wall, that requires a

          3  Bureau of Electrical Control permit.  And that may

          4  take months to get.  So what you see often, is that

          5  work gets done on these buildouts without permits,

          6  by the smaller entities.

          7                 Some landlords don't allow you to

          8  that.  They require that you go through all the

          9  processes.  Some theoretically have it in their

         10  lease that you do, but they turn the other way. But

         11  if you waited, you know  --  part of the thing is

         12  you do have to worry about the fact that Buildings

         13  has been traditionally understaffed.  And over the

         14  past year, they have finally received money to

         15  increase staff.  And I would say that as you go in

         16  the next 20 years, the City has projected a

         17  population increase from 8.1 to 9.3 million people,

         18  you're talking about having to create 22,000 housing

         19  units a year, assuming that the median household is

         20  2.7, you're looking at an awful large workload for

         21  the Department of Buildings.  And even though you

         22  have seen the increases in their budget, and the

         23  increases in personnel, to achieve all the things

         24  you want to achieve in various pieces of legislation

         25  that I have seen introduced.  And it's a lot again,
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          2  having the law enforced. But to see it done in a

          3  smooth and efficient fashion, you will need to go

          4  beyond what in fact has been even budgeted for the

          5  increases these past two years.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  I've

          7  got it now.  I was  --  when you said manufacturing,

          8  I thought you meant the people that were making the

          9  windows or the doors to go into the particular

         10  buildings, but  --

         11                 MR. ALTMAN: No, no, I'm talking about

         12    --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- You're

         14  actually talking about the manufacturers that are

         15  relocating.

         16                 MR. ALTMAN: The manufacturers that

         17  are relocating.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         19                 MR. ALTMAN: That does become an

         20  issue.  I'm not saying that they should in fact get

         21  permits.  If you have a process which is very much

         22  efficient at the Department of Buildings  -- they're

         23  not there yet.  I'll give DOB credit.  They are

         24  working very hard.  It is better than it was four

         25  years ago.  But it has a while to go on that.  It
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          2  has a while to go.  You can't have you know, 10, 15

          3  years of neglect solved in even four years, because

          4  often your neglect even takes longer to fix than the

          5  time of the neglect.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you're

          7  asking that the two bills be exempted from one- and

          8  two- family homes.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN: No, no.  I'm not saying

         10  that.  I'm saying  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: My two bills,

         12  329 and 330.

         13                 MR. ALTMAN: No, I'm not necessarily

         14  saying that. I'm saying that with respect to one-

         15  and two- family homes, on notification requirements,

         16  that we had spoken with DOB on this issue, and we

         17  had reached an agreement on a regulation.  Not

         18  something we were thrilled with, but sat there and

         19  said we're not going to oppose you as you do your

         20  regulations.  We've not seen that regulation yet.

         21  You may, in fact, talk to DOB with respect to what

         22  it was we agreed to, and that may be, ultimately,

         23  what your bill looks like.  As I said, I do think it

         24  will take care of some of your issues with respect

         25  to notification before the demolition actually takes
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          2  place.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Got it.  And

          4  you ran off some statistics on growth population,

          5  and vis- a- vis how many construction units per

          6  year.  I didn't catch all of that.  You have it on

          7  memory.  I couldn't write that fast.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN: The City Planning

          9  Commission has stated that the population of the

         10  City, between now and 20 years from now is going to

         11  increase from 8.1 million to 9.3 million.  That's an

         12  increase of 1.2 million people over 20 years.

         13  That's 60,000 people a year.

         14                 I think, according to the Housing and

         15  Vacancy survey, the median household has 2.7 people

         16  in it.  If you take that 60,000 and divide it by 2.7

         17  people per household, that's 22,000 new units per

         18  year.

         19                 And mind you, you also have under-

         20  housed people here in New York City, so you might

         21  want to have it  --  you might need additional units

         22  to deal with overcrowding.  So I understand this

         23  frustration among the members in respect that a lot

         24  of building does go on.

         25                 But in order to accommodate the fact
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          2  that we have a tremendous amount of people who are

          3  doubled up, and overcrowded, and the fact that we're

          4  also going to have a population increase, there will

          5  have to be a significant amount of construction done

          6  in this City, or else there would be further housing

          7  deterioration.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And when you

          9  talk about units, you're not just talking about home

         10  units, you're talking about a combination of

         11  apartment buildings, --

         12                 MR. ALTMAN: Apartment buildings and

         13  homes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And homes.

         15                 MR. ALTMAN: And I don't think you're

         16  going to see that we get to like 22,000 units a year

         17  of new housing in New York City.  That's a very,

         18  very good year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  How

         20  many do you think --  how many units of housing were

         21  built last year?

         22                 MR. ALTMAN: I'm not 100 percent sure

         23  about that. There has been some strong growth in the

         24  past few year  --  also realize the developers do

         25  respond to demand.  I will say this, with respect to
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          2  certain segments of this housing market, even though

          3  they're completing a projects that were done,

          4  they're hesitating in doing new projects.  They are

          5  beginning to have problems in selling certain homes.

          6                 And we have started to discount  --

          7  both associations, the members have begun

          8  discounting their houses.  And even in that aspect,

          9  they're not necessarily selling so rapidly. They're

         10  selling very slowly.  The market has, in the one-

         11  and two family network, parts we see in Queens, it's

         12  slower.  We see in the Bronx, it's slower.  We see

         13  in Staten Island, it's getting very slow.  And so

         14  there are price reductions taking place.

         15                 Sometimes, even with those price

         16  reductions, it has slowed down.  We're beginning to

         17  see that.  That's why in some respects, we're very

         18  distressed that the Mayor has chosen this time to

         19  say that the 421B program will be eliminated.

         20  Because in a sense, he's timed the market at the

         21  wrong time.  We found that very interesting that the

         22  Mayor has timed the market just as the absolute

         23  worst time. Because you don't want to start to do

         24  that just as the market is going down.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  Okay.
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          2  I think that this suggests some alternatives to 421B

          3  though, we'll take a look at it.  Thank you for your

          4  insight and information.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

          6  Jackson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 Good afternoon.  I was just curious.

         10  You

         11  eluded to the fact that some inappropriate comments

         12  were being made by individuals.  And then you also

         13  mentioned about even some Council Members in your

         14  opinion, were making some inappropriate comments.

         15  I'm not necessarily interested in knowing the

         16  individuals, but I'm interested in knowing you know,

         17  what inappropriate comments, like, are being made.

         18  Because, if in fact you feel they are, then maybe

         19  we, collectively we, that maybe we need to address

         20  those, if in fact you know, we deem them to be

         21  inappropriate.  You know, one person's opinion on

         22  comments may differ.

         23                 But I'm curious as to like what are

         24  some of the type comments which you deem, or your

         25  membership deemed to be in appropriate.
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          2                 MR. ALTMAN: I don't think you'll ever

          3  see our membership, neither association go and file

          4  a complaint in the respect of that someone has made

          5  a threatening comment.  And often, in these

          6  situations, no impropositions (sic) for our

          7  organizations. However, I will say, in general, you

          8  may have some site that is appropriately zoned, that

          9  appropriate permits have been obtained for, and the

         10  Council Member may say that I don't want you

         11  building that project.  I want it to be half the

         12  size.  If you don't drop it down to half the size, I

         13  will harass you.  I will give you problems.  And I

         14  will make life difficult for you.  You will get the

         15  project eventually done, but I will lengthen it out.

         16    I will make sure it takes longer.  Those are the

         17  types of situations which I think is problematic.  I

         18  have seen people with respect to more common aspect

         19  of this, who have in fact, all the appropriate

         20  permits, and the Council Member asked for a re-

         21  review from the various agencies.  More common thing

         22  is to try to get that is even, for example, we've

         23  seen this is Queens near wetlands, try to get State

         24  DEC to review it, State DEC will take a couple of

         25  months to review it, then reapprove it, saying that
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          2  I'm fine.  And then it starts all over, you know,

          3  the project starts all over again.  But in the

          4  interim, it's there's been a stop in construction,

          5  people have to go find other work, and the project

          6  is now more, because you've had two months worth of

          7  carrying costs.  Plus, you have to secure the sight.

          8    You know, the site  --  you can't assume the site

          9  won't be vandalized.  So I mean, that is often a

         10  concern.

         11                 And if there's a legitimate concern,

         12  and somebody has done something wrong, that may be

         13  the case.  But I think often sometimes, you have a

         14  Department of Buildings, they do have the

         15  jurisdiction to review everything.  As long as

         16  things are taken care of quickly, promptly, you

         17  know, we'll deal with that fact.

         18                 The Department, for many years, was

         19  understaffed, so that became a problem.  But

         20  hopefully, after it staffs up now, and improves its

         21  performance, that will become less of a problem and

         22  those situations will be minimized for us.

         23                 But it's funny, you do have the

         24  situations where they say that I'll make your life

         25  difficult for you, before you even put a stake in
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          2  the ground.  That becomes a very you know, that

          3  becomes a very difficult thing for us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you Council

          5  Member Jackson. Thank you, Mr. Altman.  Before we

          6  conclude today's hearings, I just want to note, for

          7  the record, that we received a letter from Mr. Paul

          8  Graziano, from Flushing, Queens, in support of

          9  Intro. Three.  And I'm just going to ask that this

         10  letter be entered into the record.

         11                 And with that, that will conclude  --

         12                 MR. ALTMAN: Mr. Chairman.  Can I just

         13  ask, for the record, while we're still on the

         14  record, that the Committee contact the Counsel to

         15  the Department of City Planning regarding Intro.

         16  265, and see whether or not they feel the definition

         17  change of demolition and alteration has any impact

         18  on the issuance of special permits.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I just got the nod

         20  from Counsel, and the Committee will do so.

         21                 MR. ALTMAN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: That concludes

         23  this hearing on demolition derby.  This is an

         24  initial oversight hearing, therefore all items will

         25  be laid over.
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          2                 The following written testimony was

          3  submitted for the record.

          4                 Written testimony of: Paul Graziano,

          5  Urban Planning Consultant, Flushing, Queens, NY.

          6                 As an urban planning consultant and a

          7  community advocate for better planning and building

          8  practices, I enthusiastically support Intro. No. 3.

          9                 During the past decade, I have helped

         10  to rezone neighborhoods, particularly in Queens

         11  County, to better reflect the existing building

         12  stock.  While the Department of City Planning has

         13  made great strides in the past two years to expedite

         14  the contextual rezoning of large areas of New York

         15  City, the Department of Buildings has done little to

         16  enforce existing laws, particularly pertaining to

         17  illegal demolition and alteration of buildings.

         18                 For years, community and civic groups

         19  have been requesting for more stringent regulations

         20  and enforcement.  In fact, without the intervention

         21  of the Police Department, which usually has

         22  essentially been banned since early 1970s, and

         23  without the treat of arrest, developers and

         24  contractors have acted with impunity.  A simple slap

         25  on the wrist, and oftentimes not even a fine, is

                                                            116

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  seen as the cost of doing business.

          3                 It would be refreshing, then, to see

          4  Intro. No. 3 become law.  This places responsibility

          5  upon the developer or contractor to obey the law or

          6  be arrested and possibly face jail time, fines, and

          7  a criminal record.

          8                 The other bills grouped with Intro.

          9  No. 3, particularly Intro. No. 30- A, which would

         10  give Community Boards, Council Members, and the

         11  public a chance to respond, and in fact, to

         12  intervene in certain cases, particularly with

         13  buildings that have historic importance; Intro. No.

         14  132, which would further penalize illegal

         15  destruction of one and two- family homes; and

         16  Intros. 252, and 253, which would make it illegal to

         17  demolish buildings without a licensed "demolition

         18  contractor".

         19                 Intro. No. 265, which calls for the

         20  definition of alteration and demolition to be

         21  further defined my need to be further refined.

         22  However, the intent of the bill is appropriate and

         23  would further limit inappropriate work to occur.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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